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Senate Agenda
Associated Students
2 February 2022
Zoom Minutes/Actions recorded by: Isabella Mendoza

CALL TO ORDER by Bee Schaefer, INTERNAL VICE PRESIDENT at 6:36 PM

A) MEETING BUSINESS
A-1) Roll Call
	Name
	Note:
absent (excused/not
excused)
arrived late (time)
departed early (time)
proxy (full name)

	Name 
	Note:
absent (excused/not
excused)
arrived late (time)
departed early (time)
proxy (full name)


	Jonathan Alberts
	Present
	Alexander Liebetrau
	Present

	Nicole Bongard
	Absent (Excused for entire meeting)
	Abigail Merkel
	Present

	Cesar Castillo
	Present (arrived late)
	Kian Mirshokri
	Present

	Cassandra Chow
	Present (arrived late)
	Luisa Ramirez
	Present

	Ethan Engler
	Present
	Erika Ramos
	Present

	Jamison Evans
	Absent
	Avital Rutenburg
	Present

	David Gjerde
	Present
	Coltin Sanders 
	Absent (Excused; Proxy :Eddie Zong)

	Jessy Gonzalez
	Present
	Hailey Stankiewicz
	Absent (Excused; Proxy: Granger Brenneman)

	Brieonni Johnson
	Present
	Aijia Wang
	Absent (Excused from 6:30 PM - 8:00 PM)

	Sohum Kalia
	Absent (Excused for the entire meeting)
	Noah Weiss 
	Present

	Megan Khobian
	Present
	Ranna Zahabi
	Absent (Excused; Proxy: Xiao Yang Hua)

	Hannah Lee
	Absent (Excused; Proxy: Shva Star)
	April Zhang
	Present

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	



A-2) Excused Absences  
Senator Stankiewicz for the entire meeting 
Senator Wang until 6:30 pm - 8:00 pm for the entire Quarter
Senator Lee for the entire meeting 
Senator Sanders for the entire meeting 
Senator Zahabi for the entire meeting 
Senator Bongard for the entire meeting 
Senator Alberts for the entire meeting 

MOTION/SECOND: Johnson/Ramos
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve all excused absences
ACTION: Vote: CONSENT  
Vote Taken:  6:38 PM

MOTION/SECOND: Ramos/Gonzalez
Motion language: motion to excuse Senator Khalia and Senator Chow for the entire meeting
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  6:39 PM

A-3) Acceptance of Proxies
Shva Star as Proxy for Senator Stankiewicz for the entire Meeting 
Granger Brenneman as Proxy for Senator Lee as Proxy for Senator  
Xiao Yang Hua as Proxy for Senator as Proxy Zahabi for Senator 
Eddie Zong as Proxy for Senator as Proxy Sanders for Senator 

Schafer:
· We are going to have to fix this. 
· We have Xiao Yang Hua as Proxy for Senator Zahabi for the entire meeting and we have Eddie Zong as Proxy for Senator Sanders for the entire meeting. 
· My recommendation would be for someone to basically reread these Proxy requests. Instead say Senator Shva Star as proxy for Senator Lee for the entire meeting and then Granger for Senator Stankiewicz.
Rutenburg:
· You are asking us to switch the Proxy’s for Lee and Stankiewicz?
MOTION/SECOND: Rutenburg/Zhang
Motion language: motion to accept Shva Star as Proxy for Senator Lee for the entire meeting, Motion to accept Granger Brenneman as Proxy for Senator Stankiewicz for the entire meeting. Motion to accept Xiao Yang Hua as Proxy for Senator Zahabi. Motion to accept Eddie Zong as Proxy for Senator Sanders for the entire meeting. 
Gonzalez:
· Order. When a Senator is making a motion wouldn’t it all have to be said in one motion not in four different motions?
Rutenburg:
· My bad, I can re-say that if you need me to. 
Schafer:
· I, don’t think it’s necessary, I, as the chair, think we can continue on. 
· Who did I say seconded, minute taker?
· We have a new minute taker. Unfortunately, Maggie could not make it tonight. We have Isabella doing it for us and they are doing a great job. We may be moving a little differently in this space. Isabella, were you able to get the second down?
Mendoza (Minute-taker):
· I don’t believe there was a second. Senator Gonzalez came in. 

ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT  
Vote Taken:  6:42 PM

B) External Reports

B-1) Chancellor’s Representative-
B-2) UCPD Representative-
B-3) GSA Representative-
B-4) University Center Governance Board Representative-
B-5) IVCSD Representative- 
 
C) New Business
	
D) PUBLIC FORUM-
Schafer: We will do public forum and then move into land acknowledgement. My apologies for forgetting, it will not happen again. 
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Ramirez
Motion language: motion to suspend orders of the day and move into appointments to the appointment of Love Maia as Letter and Science Senator and appointment of Michael Yang as Letters and Science Senator. 
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT  
Vote Taken:  6:44 PM

Schafer: 
· For everyone in public forum, we will get back to you after we do appointments. I changed my mind. We will do the land acknowledgement and then move into public forum. Just to get that done as soon as possible. 

*Moved back at 6:51 PM*

Land Acknowledgment
We ask you to join us in acknowledging the Chumash Peoples, their Elders, both past and present, as well as their future generations. 

We would like to take this opportunity for us all to reflect on how the work we do here today, in our search for knowledge, our opportunities to teach, and every day, in our chosen fields, affects these lands and the peoples of these lands that we work with and research to protect.

We acknowledge that this University system was founded upon exclusions and erasures of many Indigenous peoples, including those on whose lands this institution is located, the villages and unceded lands of the Chumash people.  This UCSB Administration has failed to faithfully and dutifully support the traditional custodians of these lands, Chumash people and Indigenous students, through their continued support of Mauna Kea.

As we work together to prevent further damage to these lands and waters that support not only our livelihoods, recreation, lifestyles, research, and education, we remember that the Chumash peoples of this area have been separated from these lands, unable to maintain livelihoods as they should, unable to recreate traditionally, unable to maintain their traditional lifeways freely, and unable to have the same access to their lands that we are provided, to do their own traditional research and educate their future generations.

The Chumash people are comprised of the descendants of Indigenous peoples removed from their Island of origin Limuw (Santa Cruz), Anyapac (Anacapa), Wima (Santa Rosa) and Tuqan (San Miguel), subjugated by 5 missions during Spanish colonization of the Central Coast, from Malibu to Morro Bay and inland to Bakersfield. The Villages, upon which this University sits, were a safe haven for maritime travelers. A place alive with trading, hospitality, and abundance. A place where knowledge of and from the surrounding areas, far and wide, was shared with all people of this place and its many visitors. A traditional place of sharing knowledge and education. A tradition this University has an obligation to remember.

Many of the projects and research conducted by this University are within the traditional territory of the Chumash Peoples, and/or affect other Indigenous peoples in their territories and in spite of all of this, each Tribe, Council, Clan, and Band is working diligently to restore and continue their traditional stewardship practices on these lands and heal from this historical trauma.

The damage that has been done and continues to be done by not sharing the true history and legacy in this place and others, and by the exploitation of the Natural Cultural Resources of these areas, can never be erased, there is no mitigation or research project that can make their communities whole again. But we can do better!

As educators, friends, and allies, together, we can acknowledge the mistakes and atrocities of the past and move forward in remembrance and relationship with the local Chumash peoples and other Indigenous peoples, to facilitate their process of healing by making sure that our processes here make room for their Chumash and Indigenous voices to be heard, their Traditional Ecological Knowledge of these territories to be listened to and their peoples to be a part of the healing of these lands and waters, as well as themselves.

This acknowledgment, though brief and in no way complete, demonstrates a commitment by this institution and their educators, to begin the process of creating a relationship with the local Chumash and Indigenous Communities and work to dismantle the ongoing legacies of settler colonialism.

We come together today to acknowledge, stand up for, and give voice to, the unceded lands and waters of the Chumash and all their peoples.

Sean McArthur, CALPIRG chapter chair
· McArthur: Hi everyone, thank you for having me again! I’m Sean and I’m the chapter chair with CALPIRG students here at UCSB! As a reminder, CALPIRG is a student run and student funded non-profit that was started 50 years ago by students like all of US who recognized that we were facing huge issues and decided to tackle the issues that students cared about. Since then, we’ve won some huge victories including getting a statewide commitment to phase out non-renewable energy sources and passed a bill banning plastic grocery bags. Our current priority is to decrease plastic pollution in California by 75% and phase out single use plastics, setting a timeline for all single use plastics to be recyclable or compostable. 300 million tons of plastic gets created yearly. This is the same weight as the entire human population, and 50% of this plastic is single use, getting used once and then thrown away with much of it ending up in our oceans and our environment. Today, we gathered 333 petition signatures from UCSB students in just 4 hours which we will deliver to our elected officials when we lobby next month and ask them to support our campaign. The reason we’re so effective on these issues is because we have 35,000 student members across the state who pledged to add the $10 CALPIRG activities fee to their tuition bill supporting us and giving students a voice in politics. Last quarter we signed up 1,200 new members, all while educating them on our campaigns and this quarter we’ll sign up another 1,000 in the next two weeks. Thank you all so much for listening to my update! I hope the rest of your week goes well!

Schafer: 
· Thank you, Sean. Is anyone interested in signing up for public forum? 

E) Acceptance of Agenda

MOTION/SECOND: Ramos/Zhang
Motion language: motion to accept the agenda  as seen on the screen as of 6:58 PM
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT  
Vote Taken:  6:59 PM

Schafer: 
· Shva, could you scroll to the top and then move slowly down? That way everyone can see what’s on the agenda. 

F) Consent Calendar-   

G) Action Items

G-1) Immediate Consideration

G-2)Old Business-       

012622-35 A Bill To Update Environmental Justice Alliance’s Legal Code
	Zhang - Lee 


012622-38 A Bill to Update the Legal Code of the A.S Community Financial Fund 
	B.Johnson - Ramos

Schafer: 
· My recommendation would maybe be to table all bills until next week.
· I heard a significant amount of Senators coming forward and saying they are dealing with a lot of stuff today.
· There’s a lot of important stuff we needed to get through today including the swear ins and the external audit report. 
· Unless you all would like to table these matters, we could table them for next week. 
· The floor is now open.
Proxy Jian: 
· Question to the authors of the bills that are in old business, how urgent are these that they need to be passed tonight?
Schafer:
· They are both legislative bills. I see Brieonni Johnson is one of the authors here, however Senator Zhang and Senator Lee are not here. We have Proxy for Senator Lee. 
Johnson: 
· Specifically for my bill, they do really want to focus on peer advising this quarter, and so it’s necessary to pass it as soon as possible. 
Zhang:
· I just want to clarify first, I was here at the beginning and usually I do have class, but because it is midterms, we have a test that did not happen during same class time. Lee has a proxy if we can I would like to move forward on this. This is just a bill to update legal code for the Environmental Justice Alliance. It’s to simplify the office hour requirements and made other smaller changes in order to make their work and time more efficient. 
Schafer: 
· I would like Marisela to weigh in here. When the first and second are not present, the bill cannot be voted upon. It’s kind of like a resolution, we cannot vote on it in immediate consideration if the second is no longer there. Might I recommend for the first bill, a bill to update Environmental Justice Alliance’s Legal Code, we change the author to a Senator who is present because Proxy’s cannot vote in this current vote. 
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Proxy Jian 
Motion language: motion to pass a bill to update the legal code of the A.S. Community Financial Fund
Schafer: 
· Marisela, I see your hand is raised.
Marisela: 
· I just wanted to confirm what you had shared to the senate. That would be the appropriate course of action.

ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  7:04 PM

Schafer: 
· Senator Maia, I just applaud your engagement right now. Even some senators who have been on the floor since swear in have not risen their hand in times like this. Thank you for your activity. 
Proxy Jian: 
· I reserve my right. 
Schafer:
· You may reserve your right and I would recommend tabling. 
Proxy Jian: 
· Motion to table the bill to update the legal code of the A.S. Community Financial Fund for one week.
Schafer:
· Proxy Jian, we just passed that bill. The only old business we have is the bill to update the Environmental Justice Alliance legal code.

MOTION/SECOND: Proxy Jian/Maia 
Motion language: motion to table Environmental Justice Alliances’ bill to update legal code for one week
ACTION: Vote:  OBJECTION
Vote Taken:  7:06 PM

Schafer:
· I hear an objection. To you rescind your call to question Senator Maia?
· Let me briefly go over what it means. Right now when a Senator calls to question they are calling for a vote, saying there was enough discussion and now it’s time to vote. When someone makes an objection to call to question, I would ask you to rescind your call to question. If you decide to rescind, we would move back into discussion in which a fellow senator can bring up another point. If you decide not to, we would go into a vote-to-vote. This vote-to-vote would be whether or not we are going to have a vote. Another process that could happen is if the vote-to-vote passes we would immediately go into a hand vote. 
Ramos: 
· I rescind my call to question. 
Gonzalez:
·  I reserve my right, considering the author would like to pass this bill tonight. 
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Johnson
Motion language: motion to open up a bill to update the Environmental Justice Alliance legal code to change the second author
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  7:07 PM

Schafer: 
· Senator Zhang I will allow you to share your screen to see the bill. 
· Now is the time to change the second. Is there a particular senator you would like to second on this bill?
*Screen shared Exhibit A*
Zhang: 
· I do not have a preference. Senator Lee and I are the two liaisons for EJA. Any senator who would like to volunteer is fine with me. 
Schafer: 
· I see Senator Weiss and Senator Maia have their hands raised. If anyone is interested specifically with environmental justice or sustainability to align with this bill. Senator Weiss hand was raised first.
· Please edit Senator Weiss name in. Props to the new senators for jumping in at an opportunity. I am so proud!
MOTION/SECOND: Proxy Star/Gonzalez
Motion language: motion to approve Noah Weiss as the second for the bill to update the Environmental Justice Alliance legal code and exit and go back into orders of the day  
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  7:11 PM

H) Recess-
Schafer: 
· My recommendation would be to go into a five-minute recess. The reason why is that there are a few things I must prepare regarding a few BCU’s. I am going to need time to check in with them and make sure I have a full understanding of all the points they have to bring forward. 
· As chair it has come to my attention that a few senators have not really adhered to the BCU’s my respecting them properly, hearing them out really just being a good senator. I would like to give them space at this meeting to address those matters on their behalf. 
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Proxy Jian
Motion language: motion to pass a bill to update the Environmental Justice Alliance legal code with the modifications from the second author of Senator Lee to Senator Weiss
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  7:12 PM

Proxy Jian:
· I reserve my right. Have we passed the bill yet?
Schafer:
· Yes, we just did. 
MOTION/SECOND: Proxy Jian/Maia
Motion language: motion for a five-minute recess
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  7:13 PM

Schafer: 
· Please be back here at 7:18 PM.
· Please come back to your screens, it is 7:18.

I) ASUCSB Reports

I-1) Administrative Committees-
I-2) Boards and Commissions-
Schafer: 
· I will be giving updates on boards and commissions, the ones that I spolke with, during my report.
I-3) Unit Reports-
I-4) President’s Cabinet Report -
I-5) Executive Director’s Report-
AS External Audit Report
Marisela Marquez: 
· Thank you to the chair and the senate. As you all might recall, on an annual basis all of our records and decisions are audited by an external firm. This is the report. All of the folks that have been with us for a few years have heard the results of the audits. The idea is that we listen, as questions, and contact questions in written form after the fact. I am also available to ask questions for the sake of the report.
Cindy:
· Hi everybody, I am Cindy Lopez, the outgoing assistant director of finance. We do have a couple of new auditors this year. 
Miguel:
· Hi everyone, my name is Miguel Mendez. As Cindy mentioned, we do have a full team. David, Christian, Sarah Turner. As Marisela mentioned, this is an annual process. Our goal is to come in and perform an independent audit of AS. WE take a look at the records, do some sampling and analytics of the transactions. Our goal is to provide a conclusion of the audit report. 
*Screen shared Exhibit B*
· This is what a financial statement essentially looks like. You have an opinions report, which is probably the most important thing when you look at a financial statement. The verbiage is essentially saying “these are the procedures we performed, analytics, procedures, and everything else we do.”
· After you provide the opinion, you talk about the base of it, responsibility of management, responsibility management, assets, how much cash it has. Showing this visually will give you a better idea. 
· Ultimately, we hope you can make better decisions and how these decisions affect the association. 
· Balance sheet includes assets, liabilities, net assets.
· Income statement is all the revenue that come in and the sources and expenses. You can do a comparative of previous years. Goes into cash flows.
· Each financial statement goes into what we call notes. It gives you an idea of how the numbers were put together. Every single number is on the report has been reviewed and audited. 
*Screen shared Exhibit C, slide 1*
· These metrics are being pulled from the report. We like to give a three-year comparison to show where the association has been previously. As we all know, COVID, has taken an impact on any entity. The expenditures are associated with any student groups. The drops seem reasonable because COVID has taken an impact. We will see revenues pick up again. 
· *Slide 2*
· This graph shows the breakup between what ultimately makes up the revenue. The biggest driver will be registration fees. The other budget is the sales and services products (bike shop revenue) if the University were open. Last few years have been challenging, and the revenue stream has lowered.
· *Slide 3*
· Once again, the COVID trend, student programs are the high drivers on expenses. You can see that its taken a hit. 
· Salaries, without students on campus, that has taken a slight dip. 
· *Slide 4*
· The last piece shows the make-up of the balance piece. It’s the meat of the bone. IT is trying to say how much assets do we have at our disposal to support groups and make decisions with this money. I am only showing the assets because there are not many liabilities on the sheets. Within the assets piece, there is billable cash there. It’s to support student programs. 
· The other make up is investments. There are a chunk of assets that go into investments. The last piece are prepayments that make up the rest. 
Schafer:
· If you notice, in assets, cash has increased, investments have increased, and assets have decreased. What happened to make this occur? Why the assets may have decreased a bit? If you may or may not know, a lot of BCU’s and entities are submitting a lot of budget requests to increase their budget for the second. We have our hearings soon, financial wise, I think all of this stuff works together to make up the association. 
Miguel:
· Cash is the focus on the revenues. Your revenues went up, expenditures stayed pretty flat, and the expenses went down. You have a bit more revenue and expenditures are not as in line as the previous year. The simple answer is you guys did not use up your cash as you had historically. The budgets that were submitted may not have been fully spent. 
· On the investment side, the market has done well recently and that’s what striving increase. 
· The other assets are prepayments, inventory, whatever is left over. Fixed assets depreciate. As assets depreciate, ultimately drive down the net assets that are there. The other assets, the main drawback are the depreciate assets for the year. 
Proxy Star: 
· Is this the only entity that this information is shown to? Is this information available for students to access in any form perhaps on the AS website? If we have any further questions, what is the best way to reach the committee?
Miguel:
· The financial statements are sent to management and the senate. We don’t share with anyone else. The finalized report is given to Marisela and her team. We assume they share it with you guys. I’m not sure if its available to the public forum. There isn’t a requirement on our side. If this was a public company it would be required. If you guys have questions, feel free to reach out. You could reach out through Marisela. Historically we have concluded the statements after being asked questions. The goal is to get the finalization done this week.
Schafer: 
· For Cindy and Marisela, I am letting senators ask questions directly before we have admin oversight. 
Maia:
· I wanted to acknowledge my question is similar to that of Senator Merkel and Liebetrau, it would be nice if we could get this information to have more time to review it. My other question was shared by Proxy Star. I did also want to ask how long this will be in draft form and how long do we have to review it?
Miguel:
· From our perspective, there isn’t a compliance to get the financial statements issued. Usually there is a driver behind by a bank after year end. It would come down to management. I don’t want to speak on their behalf, we don’t have a problem with you guys reading through them. 
Schafer: 
· That being said, I would love if this draft could be sent to all senators. I would say that since a lot of senators are not here, proxy’s this information is very important and why I didn’t shift this meeting to an email vote. Please send this to the executive email that way our committee can take a look at them. 
Marisela:
· I’ll take a second to answer additional questions. If we were in person you would have a set of these reports in front of you. The issue of it being presented here tonight, this is a minuted and Facebook live event, it is public in minutes and published in your minutes. These features make it a public report.
· The additional matter is that our fiscal years end on June 30th. The new year starts on July 1st. The workflow being report here is not on the current year, it is the prior year. All elements that we have paid out and everything we were charged have been completed. Those are the records being reported by the outside auditors. 
· What you are viewing now is not on the current year, but all the expenses occurred before June 30th. I just want to make sure we contextualize that.
Cindy:
· As far as the timeline, we will be sending out the drafts. Once it has been finalized, all the senate gets a copy. Other people who get a copy of this audit report are the Chancellor, Vice Chancellor of Student Affairs, the Business and Financial Services, the controller of UC, and the audit department. The executive officers, staff, and management also receive copies. 
· Another thing I want to address is a question asked about the increase of cash assets. We have a lot of designated funds to certain groups. Although our associate was very active considering we were remote, you just can’t spend the same amount of money doing virtual events like you could at concerts in person. There is a lot of money that couldn’t be spent but is designated to certain groups that have roll over and have an automatic lock in. 
Marisela:
· This is only 50% of the audit reports that have been presented to you. There is another coming to share to you. 
Schafer:
· Regarding what Michaels said, about getting the senate’s blessing, what does that mean necessarily? 
Marisela:
· I meant in the next few minutes you will be presented a whole other report. There is more coming. This is our process. The draft is presented and all. If you have questions, you can send them to me and I will pass them along to the audit team. In general, they will be able to send it out in draft form.
Cindy:
· Tomorrow when I get into the office, I can send it out to senate and execs. 
Marisela:
· Michael is just one presenter.
*Screen shared Exhibit D*
Miguel: 
· I was going to go ahead and present the SOC 1 report. There is a lot of activity, reviews, controls, that ultimately require a little more oversight. What we wanted to do was make sure the controls were in place and implemented correctly. That’s what this report is achieving. 
· We draw procedures to make sure the processes are in place. If there is specific controls in place, that they are being followed. We do a number of tests and take a look at the procedures are and being followed. An opinion is issued on the controls piece. For the year in scope, this is from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. We looked at procurement system, making sure invoices are being reviewed. We concluded the controls were implemented correctly and designed correctly.
· The report shows in detail what the controls are, what we did, and the results. 
· *Page 15*
· This is more a pass and fails that were noted. 
· We did note there was a common in that the known was more around a clause in the organization financial policy and procedures. In section VII, clause 5 it talks about bidding process in anything over $5,000. That is the only one we did not see being followed. We issued a recommendation. We didn’t need to send an unqualified opinion. That was the only observation under the controls that we reviewed.
· I will pass it on to Sarah.
Sarah Turner:
*Screen shared Exhibit E*
· I am the partner in charge. I manage the team around this job.
· As a part of the procedure, we are required to communicate with management and those in charge of governance which in your case would be Senate. We are required to issue a report over the audit and any information we feel is important for you (in regard to running the organization). 
· The first section goes over the scope of what we did. This report is attached to the original set of financial statements we looked at, not the second.
· We were able to issue an unmodified opinion on the statements that they were in compliance with “generally accepted accounting principles”. That’s a good opinion.
· Management was fully cooperative with us. There were no restrictions on any of the scopes we had to do. 
· Section 3 is the required communication. A lot of the language is what we issue to most of our clients but there are some differences. We are required to notify if there are any disagreements with management (we did not have any of these issues), say if there is anything in the judgements (areas of the financial statements that require judgement on the part of management). We did not discover any type of fraud. We also certify we are independent of the organization. 
· The last part is the main part of the report. These are different types of deficiencies in internal control that we are required to report to you. There are different levels. The worst level is a “significant weakness”. It’s the most troubling because it means that controls are so bad that there is a high likelihood that the financial statements are materially misstated. There is nothing there to catch this. I am happy to say we did not detect any material mistakes during the audit.
· The next level is called a significant deficiency. This is something that is less severe than a material weakness but is still important enough that we are going to bring it up to you. I think we had three different significant deficiencies this year:
· The emergency student loans accounting is not being recorded in compliance with GAP. We do correct that, Miguel?
Miguel:
· Right. This is more an FYI. The financial statements are being presented in accordance with GAP. This is just something that we noticed. It can be a lot more work. Ultimately we book an entry.
Sarah:
· (Significant deficiencies continued)
· Same thing we kind of issue with the accounts payable. They are not being recorded properly. Year-end we propose a judgement to correct that. It’s not a bit deal, but it something we need to bring to attention. Something we report every year. 
· This one is new this year, it deals with the costs that are occurred on behalf of the association for the construction of the new Bike Shop. We had to add an adjustment to add those costs to the books. 
Miguel:
· Yes. The university is occurring costs on behalf of the association, any costs that have to do with the construction. Ultimately those costs are going to be cross searched to the association because that is where the Bike Shop costs will end up. They are going to be cross searched. It’s prudent to list those costs and put them on the balance sheet. As of the financial reporting date say how much is the university going to charge the association. It shows the reader that there is a cost that will be coming your way. 
Sarah:
· What happens is those Costs accumulate. Once that asset opens and you are actually using the bike shop, what happens is life will be assigned to the asset. That asset gets depreciate over the life of the asset. 
Schafer:
· This is very quick and fast, I would just like to reiterate that we are going to need more time to look this information over. I want all the senators to see this. I think it would be beneficial to contact you directly. 
Marisela:
· I just want to clarify for the sake of our new senators, the timeline that these documents reflect was over a year ago. At the present time, as of February 2022. The building in question at the time the documents are being reviewed, was over a year ago. The purpose of this is to make sure the proper controls are being used.
· I don’t know how many of you are authorized signers, only folks that have done through a certain procedure can actually approve to spend money on behalf of anyone. If you multiply that across hundreds of decisions and projects, those are what we call controls. 
· Many people will ask why a requisition looks that way or why there has to be so many hoops. All those hoops are the controls. They are what these auditors are testing. They make sure we are doing what we are supposed to based on your financial policies and procedures and legal code. They test against the actual expenditures/transactions that have long been completed. 
· You will see towards the end of your academic year limits on when you can make expenditures so we can begin to gather these same records for the current year. 
Anjum Finch:
· Thank you, Marisela, for putting it so simply. I also wanted to add the auditors for coming out here and working with us. We had numerous meetings to give them the information that they requested. I also wanted to ask them if they have any concerns or if they need anything from us. 
Miguel:
· I think that the report to management is the ultimate “report card”. This is kind of what we can see of what can be rectified or implemented. The ones that are currently presented don’t require a lot to be rectified. A lot of these that have come up we determined although this could be a “perfect” system, these controls may not make sense because it adds more work. 
· We come in with an open mind every year. We decide if it will ultimately harm the overall financial statements. If you do put a control in place, will it ultimately show something different on the balance sheet or income statement? The result was no. That’s the approach we take. 
· This is probably one of the best run entities I have audited. There are numerous controls that are followed almost to the T. 
Sarah:
· There is a spot in here that management has the chance to respond. We pretty much got all the responses. There was only one that might have been open.
Miguel:
· It was a construction in progress. I did have a discussion with Anjum earlier today to go over it. After the Bike Shop is complete, it’s not like the association will have all of these construction progress go on. There is a construction contract out there with the contractor and I’m sure the university will stay close to that. 
Anjum:
· One quick clarification. The recommendations they are making are for future years. Another thing, the Bike Shop has 10 months scheduled. We will probably not see the completion of the building when we go through the next audit cycle. 
Schafer:
· Thank you, presenters and faculty, for weighing in. 
Sarah:
· We are almost done. This last section is other matters. It is things we like to bring to the senate’s attention. The big one is always political activities. One of things is an exchange for you guys having tax exempt status is you guys cannot engage in any political campaign activity (any supporting or opposing certain candidates for any side of public office). Local, state, or federal offices. 
· You as an AS senator can’t come out publicly say you are in favor for voting for a particular candidate. Individually, that is something you can do. As a part of your Associated Students senator’s duties, it is not something you can do.
· You can do things like non-partisan voter drives. You can campaign for a certain issue. You can have both sides come in and present. You just can’t say through AS that this is the candidate you should vote for. That has to do with the political campaign. 
· There is also another part called lobbying where a not-for-profit engages in trying to influence potential legislation. You can do some lobbying, however it cannot be substantial. The problem here the IRS has never clearly defined this and so its really based on what is called “facts and circumstances” test. 
· If the IRS was going to come in they would look at a bunch of different factors such as the time devoted and expenditures devoted by the association towards the lobbying. One court case said that anything that was less than 5% of the organizations total time was considered minor. Another case said anything over 20% was considered major. There is no official sanction from the IRS.
· The key thing here is to kind of rely on the training you have received. If you have questions about this you should just bring them up.
· Did you want us to leave our emails in the chat?
Marisela:
· If it’s okay with you, Bee, I’d rather put my email if anyone has questions. The way this works is management responses are put back into the document. I can gather questions and work them into responses. 
Schafer:
· The only reason I am inclined to say no is because people have directly messaged me. That’s why I have asked three times. I would like their emails directly, if that is possible.
Marisela:
· The issue is they each do parts of the report. 
Miguel:
· I don’t have a problem. I can kind of filter the questions and loop you in with them. Bee, can you do me a favor and kind of consolidate the questions and forward them to me? That way I don’t have to respond to every person, unless you think they should send them personally. 
Schafer:
· I can do my best to do that. I will say if it is a senator that has a question, I probably will send them directly to you. If it is someone outside of the space, I will do some “vetting”. 
Marisela:
· The other thing that is helpful is that there are a lot of things that are unknown by either senators or authorized signers. The intent was to just answer the questions in parallel. They are auditing our procedures. If folks don’t know our procedures the questions that come up are more important to yourselves. 
· I wanted to thank the external audit team that has been working extremely diligent these past two years while the pandemic has been going on. They have been the audit firm for over 32 years. In the scope of the campus, there is literally one department that pays for an external audit and this is the one. All of the responsibilities that they students put into this; this is what they are reviewing. Who is making decisions and how they are made. 
· There are a number of opportunities coming forward in terms of legal code and really future financial policies and procedures. The intent of the audit is how we can improve. 
Cindy:
· The next steps are tomorrow morning when I get into the office. I will send all the senate and execs the reports. They still are a draft. Anjum and I are always there during the year if you have any questions or would like to look back at previous years. We have this audit every year as it states in the legal code. It’s really a great thing for us because it make us go over everything we do. It lets us know that we are doing everything properly. We feel good to know that we are running the organization in the way the students want us to do it. 
Marisela:
· Just a last point on the political lobbying. The effort of the department is of education To draw a distinction of lobbying for the sake of somebody winning or losing versus what you all do is really to educate on the effects of changes in law, legislation, or leadership. That tends to be more of the type of work our entities are involved in. 
Schafer:
· One last question is if the association, whether that be senators or execs invites you to come back and speak, would you all be open to that?
Miguel:
· Yes. 
Schafer:
· Thank you for presenting, I appreciate you all. 
Miguel:
· Thank you. It is always a pleasure. Thanks everyone. 

I-6) Executive Officers’ Report –
      President
      Internal Vice President 
Schafer: 
· Thank you all for being here and taking the time to stay here longer. I would like to preface this conversation by having everyone be active and listen. Everyone who can hear me now please raise your hand. I am going to take note of people who are not here. 
· I would like to address concerns brought forward by a BCU entity, specifically the Black Women’s Health Collaborative, as well as concerns brought forward by other black members of the association.
· I would like to open this up by saying it is Black History month, for those of you who do not know. It is a month where people come together in the black community, revive, and educate themselves on a lot of the black excellence that has occurred, and, personally, a time to remember where I come from, where my people have come from, and what this leadership experience/appointment means to me. I will be offering Shva Star to speak as a fellow black member of the association.
· First, I would like to address some concerns that are unacceptable and will not be tolerated going forward. The Black Women’s Health Collaborative has come to me and state that they wish and have demanded, and I will enforced, that their names or likeness cannot be included on any bill or legislation without their firm, documented consent. 
· What is documented consent? That is email and text if they consent to their text being a formal means of communication. 
· Another, to ensure that if a black woman attends a meeting do not let that moment be perceived as a co-sign of the Black Women’s Health Collaborative’s intent to be there. This goes forth with a legacy that is misogynistic and very racist. That a black woman’s presence represents every woman in their community or black person.
· This is rooted in racial bias and so many disgusting ism’s that I cannot speak. A black woman or a black person was mistaken to be taken as a member of the Black Women’s Health Collaborative. This is blatantly racist and will be addressed further. This is not the first nor last time I will say this. I will address this until it is remedied and until the Black Women’s Health Collaborative feels whole again. There is no way we can mitigate this, there is just a best way we can move forward.
· The Black Women’s Health Collaborative would like to make sure the senate spells their names correctly. This can intern cause harm to a community that is already harmed so much. 
· Treat the Black Women’s Health Collaborative and black students as humans and students who are attending classes alongside you, serving alongside you, and in your community, not stand beside them as a radical performative action. 
· What this means, for those of you who do not know, means aligning yourself with the Black Women’s Health Collaborative or any black entity, it might be considered as taking a radical approach. As you know, there is a lot of performative action going on. You can say you are “environmentally friendly” “pro Black Lives Matter”, all of these social movements that gage and guide our community and liberal environment. In reality, you may not engage or subscribe to those morals at all.
· Please do not reach out to BCU entities just for radical proximity. Be sure to engage; these are not requests, they are a demand and mandate. 
· Think of communities of color and reach out to them with ample time for care and response. Do not think that you will get an automatic email. That comes from a place of privilege which you may or may not think you have. You must give them ample time to respond, especially when discussing things like menstrual equity which affect black women even worse. 
· These are just a few topics that they asked me to discuss. I will go further into how I will address this matter. Allow people ample amount of time to respond. If you do not know the appropriate amount of time, ask them. That is common, business etiquette. 
· That concludes what I want to say on behalf of the Black Women’s Health Collaborative. I will continue to speak more of these issues in the future when they arise, I hope they will not again. I will also note this is not the full extent of how I will address this matter. Be prepared to hear more next meeting. 
· The only reason I am not continuing this conversation more is because I know it is midterms week and we have seven senators who are not here. This is solely meant for you all to understand and engage with this content so you will know how to move forward in the future. 
Proxy Star: 
· Hi everyone. I am currently a proxy for Senator Lee, however I was a senator last year. 
· Racism, anti-blackness, and afro-pessimism is very nuanced and entrenched in so many institutions, including AS and in basic interactions. Please make sure you are not ignoring your counter parts, dismissing their experiences, or statements. 
· If you make an error like names spelled incorrectly, please ensure you correct it. I have had gross and egregious misspellings of my name in both my first and second name. However, I have had people disrespect me by asking to call me by another name and/or refusing to say it properly including teachers throughout my education. 
·  I just want to state this could be nuanced and it may not necessarily be on purpose. However, intention does not negate harm. You may have the best intentions, but that does not mean your actions or statements were perceived in that way.
· It’s not the end of the world. I have also been on the senate floor so I understand what it’s like to be in the public eye. It’s okay to make error. It’s okay to change your mind. It is best to remain optimistic. It is best to remain open minded and willing to learn, that’s why we are here. I think that is also assumed we all have these “contemporary social etiquette” in this new age that we are in. I think that we are just now starting to see other people’s experiences and to treat people like human beings, or rather, we are recognizing that that is not happening. 
· Errors are going to be made. That is okay as long as you correct them. What is not okay is going forward like they were not made. Most times, in the black community that can spread across all ethnicities, language barriers and things like that are often times typically dismissed and brushed past. You are erasing someone else’s discomfort, especially when you are not the active recipient of that harm. Please keep that in mind when things like that occur. 
· I hope that you all are asking questions, correcting yourselves, and seeing how you can assist. Not necessarily taking a back seat, but to just ask how you can engage best. I think it’s best to ask questions and always stay open minded. I do understand some of what the Black Women’s Health Collaborative has gone through. I do think it is unacceptable. Keep this in mind at all times because it’s not really an ask, it’s a standard that should be upheld.
Schafer:
· Thank you, Proxy Star, for the remarks and helping me address this matter with the senate. 
· I want to reiterate; this is not a request it’s a demand. As the only black executive, I have definitely been on the receiving end of anti-blackness. It’s been difficult to hold my position and make sure that I’m operating in the best light because there is a lot of pressure. For the Black Women’s Health Collaborative, I think that this is a new way you all can engage and take it as a learning experience/moment to improve.
· This is not really a time for feedback so if any senators have feedback on what I just said, I kindly mandate you put your hand down. If you have anything you want to address, email me or the Black Women’s Health Collaborative because I am not in the space or capacity to educate.
· My sole purpose is to speak on behalf of the Black Women’s Health Collaborative and just represent their concerns. Since they are not here, I cannot really address any questions. 
· I did want to add on a few things. Just remember who you are speaking to and when you are speaking to them. Remember where they come from. Remember how your words can be a bias of privilege and anything that could be perceived of harm. Always be mindful of what you say and how you say it. If you make a mistake don’t just say “Oh, I completely understand where you are coming from, it was not my intention.” Those words, “intention”, is just for me, as black woman, is what automatically throws an apology out the door. “Intention”? What? Come again? 
· I just want to make sure you all know never to approach me in that way. If you did in the past or in the future, you will still be addressed. 
· As far as anything going forward, there will be an anti-blackness training. You all can further learn about anti-blackness for those of you who may not know what that is, you should know by now. Research it on your own time. That is the only training we did not conduct. I spoke about this a little bit before; we will have an anti-blackness training and know that is on the agenda in the future. This will be added to the additional required honoraria trainings just like the other mandatory trainings. 
· With that said, retroactive honoraria will be due on the 10th. Please, every senator if I ask you for proof next week that you contacted your BCU’s I hope you can provide it. If I ask for a screenshot of the emails you sent to the chairs, I hope you can do that. 
· Let them know about the deadline, if any member by now, and I quote, “has not received honoraria, they should apply for retroactive honoraria just to be safe.” If they have not received or touched their check, we want to make sure it gets there. I don’t want students to miss this deadline. I will make retroactive honoraria is available for any quarter that the association has been in operation during my term always an option. 
· Let’s just say that somebody has COVID right now and they miss the deadline and miss the deadline for fall retroactive honoraria. Winter quarter honoraria will also encompass fall. Spring quarter retroactive honoraria will encompass winter and fall. There will never be a limit to where you can receive the money you should have gotten when you were working. I just want you to take advantage of this opportunity because the honoraria committee will dedicate time to review these responses. If we keep getting trickled in responses it will keep on overlapping for the committee. I don’t want to have to put you all on the back burner. 
· The anti-blackness trainings from last year are still linked in the YouTube recording list for the senatorial trainings. If you all want to get ahead and learn some more you can go ahead and look at those videos. It would be very commendable considering it is black history month and we all should take initiative to learn more about black community. We are a part of your constituency, we are a minority, we are marginalized, and if you are representing marginalized communities and minorities, you cannot do that without representing us. Please take that time. It will probably be more extensive next week.
Chow:
· I just wanted to say wow. There are so many better ways to talk to someone. You can’t just assume that it’s okay. I think that’s something people chose not to think of. There are so many other ways to phrase things. You can stop ignoring them. Be a better person by education yourself. Just reach out. 
Schafer:
· I don’t mean to cut you off, I appreciate what you are saying. 
      External Vice President of Local Affairs
      External Vice President of Statewide Affairs
      Student Advocate General
I-7) Senator Representative Reports-
Gonzalez: 
· For the new senators please send over your bio, photos, and potential office hours. I know there is also the “Direct Government State of Accountability” with the IVP office that has a form for office hours to make it more efficient. Please get that to me as soon as possible for the website.
I-8) Administrative Reports-
      	
J) Committee Reports
J-1) Standing Committee on Finance and Business-
Johnson: 
· To reiterate, for authorize signers workshops, my office hours are 10 AM to 11 AM on Tuesday and Thursdays from 9 AM to 11 AM.
J-2) Standing Committee on External Affairs-
Zhang: 
· The committee had a relatively short meeting to respect midterms week. Essentially, we just presented, discussed, and approved the budget proposal for the upcoming year for the committee. Moving forward, we have a couple pieces of legislation we have in mind we will continue to work on. We are also working with COC to fill the vacant spaces on this committee. 
Wang: 
· I am looking forward, like the other members, to fulfill the space in our committee.  Am happy to have those people. This week we approved the proposal and present at the budget hearing. 
J-3) Standing Committee on Internal Affairs-
Ramos: 
· First, I’d like to welcome the new senators to senate. 
· We met last Thursday to kind of finalize how we want to move forward in a new minute receiving. Holly is going to talk to IT and see how it will pan out. Eventually we will create legislation for it. 
· We also talked about the senior advisor for the Office of the President and his wanting to change the GE requirement for European traditions. We had a pretty lengthy discussion on that. We are all trying to get the word out in our own specific ways. 
· We don’t have a co-chair for our committee. Please talk to Bee if you want to be a co-chair. You get to work with me and awesome people a part of the committee. 
Schafer:
· Just to reiterate to the new senators, there is a vice chair vacant. I am opening it up to the new senators as well. I know that you all have zero experience in the senate, but I think it would be great if you all are interested in taking up leadership. Experience is not something I will be factoring in to this process, there will be other metrics that are supported by legal code.
J-4) Standing Committee on Basic Needs-
Merkel: 
· We are working on a water project with the student advocate general. We are sending out a survey this week.
· We also just talked about our budget. 
· Alex is looking to change some of our bylaws.
Liebetrau:
· I yield my time. 
J-5) Group Project and other Temporary Committee Reports- 

K) Minutes and Allocations:

K-1) Senate Minutes 	
    Senate 1/26
Senate Appointment AdHoc Committee 2/01
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Johnson
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve all Senate minutes
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  8:46 PM

K-2) Administrative Committees Minutes
K-3) BCU Minutes
IVTU 1/21
CMU 1/28
SCORE 1/26
SASA 1/27
BikeComm 1/31
EJA 1/31
ZWC 1/31
EAB 1/31
CAB 1/31
PCGB 1/28
ASBWHC 1/18
TSA 2/1
CODE 1/28
CF 1/28
CFF 1/26
HRB 1/26
ASPB 1/31
CoVo 2/02
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Johnson
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve all BCU minutes
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  8:48 PM

MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Maia
Motion language: motion to suspend orders of the day for February 1st 
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 8:59PM

Motion to amend previous motion for February 1st

MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Maia
Motion language:  motion to amend
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 

K-4) Standing Committee Minutes	
IAC 1/27
BNC 1/31
EAC 1/18
MOTION/SECOND: Ramos/Ramirez
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve all standing committee minutes
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 8:48PM

Schafer:
· Isabella, are F&B minutes ready?
Mendoza:
· Yes, they are in the folder I have shared with everyone. I will say, I wasn’t able to get two exhibits, but its all edited and ready to go.
Schafer:
· It’s okay to motion on it?
Mendoza:
· Absolutely.
Schafer:
· F&B minutes are arguably the most important because there are a lot of entities that go to that space are non-AS affiliated. They are SEAL. 
Castillo:
· Question to Isabella, what is the folder to access the minutes?
Mendoza:
· It’s a folder I have shared with the F&B committee.  
Schafer:
· I know it is getting late, but just remember there is no end to senate meeting until legislation is written that changes this. 
Mendoza:
· Can I email the minutes to you, Bee?
Schafer:
· Yes. Let me know when it is sent. I am going to quickly download the copy. I appreciate you all are doing this and not complaining. It is a sign of your character and that you hold dear this position. 
*Screen shared Exhibit F*
· These are the minutes. I am just scrolling through them. If you want me to stop at any time, please let me know.
Ramos:
· Bee? Do you think you could zoom in just a little?
Schafer: 
· I can do that. 
· If you all do not know, F&B hears presentations on the members that are coming to request funding. After they hear the words of the members, they go into discussion and put everything to vote. As you can see they had a lot of discussion which is always good.
· This is a beautiful thing we can see. We have the SEAL winter quarter fund of just under $250,000 in the account. 
MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Maia
Motion language: motion to approve the F&B minutes from February 1st
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 8:59PM

*Moved back at 9:00 PM*
Motion language: motion to amend my previous motion to approve the F&B minutes from February 1st to approve the F&B minutes from January 31st.
Schafer:
· Is this friendly with the second? This is friendly. I will now invite you to amend motion.
Castillo:
· Is that not what I just did?
Schafer:
· Now you will make the motion.
MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Maia
Motion language: motion to amend my previous motion to approve the F&B minutes from February 1st to approve the F&B minutes from January 31st.
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 9:01 PM


L-1 ) Appointments
*Moved here at 8:59 PM*
Committees on Committees 
Appointment of Caroline Bancroft as AS Zero Waste Committee Public Outreach Coordinator
Appointment of Tiffany Nicolescu as AS Zero Waste Committee Public Outreach Coordinator.
Appointment of Justin Vo as COSWB Finance Coordinator
Appointment of Johnny Bashawaty as COSWB Fitness Coordinator
Appointment of Jake Ratana as COSWB Fitness Coordinator
Appointment of David Wu as COSWB: Nutrition Coordinator
Appointment of Sydney Yamanishi as CoVo Secretary
Appointment of Owen Skinner as Elections Board General Member
Appointment of Jason Lee as Internal Affairs Committee Student at Large.
Appointment of Gabriella Sterritt as Internal Affairs Committee Student at Large.
Schafer:
· These are all recommendations by the Committees on Committees. 
Castillo:
· I have been made aware that I made a mistake in my motion where the F&B minutes were from January 31st. How do I correct that mistake?
Schafer:
· You would amend your previous motion. 
*Moved back at 9:01 PM*

MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Johnson
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve the appointments made by the Committee on Committees 
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 9:02 PM

​​*Moved here at 6:44 PM*
Senate 
 	Appointment of Love Maia as Letter and Science Senator
            Appointment of Michael Yang as Letters and Science Senator
MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Ramos
Motion language: motion to bundle and approve Love Maia and Michael Yang as collegiate senators for the college of Letters and Science.
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  6:45PM

Schafer:
· We will conduct the swear in process. Congratulations everyone! Thank you for being a part of the process and the senate. We will be here for you every step of the way. I am here, Marisela is here, as well as your fellow Senators. 
· Before we get started, I would like to start the swear in process. You will raise your right hand and repeat after me. We are first going to start with Senator Yang.

*Swearing in process begins at 6:46PM for Michael Yang as Letters and Science Collegiate Senator*
Yang:
· I, Michael Yang, hereby affirm that I will fulfill the duties of the Letters and Science Collegiate Senator for the 2021-2022 academic year to the best of my ability. I will see to facilitate the Associate Students and the University Community in a manner that is consistent with the ideals of an academic community. 
Schafer:
· You are now sworn in! Marisela, I see that your hand is raised?
Marisela:
· That was an error I was just trying to clap. 

Schafer:
· We will swear in the next senator and then go more into detail about the people in the room. 
· *Swearing in process begins at 6:46PM for Michael Yang as On-Campus Senator*
Maia: 
· I, Love Maia, hereby affirm that I will fulfill the duties of the Letters and Science Collegiate Senator for the 2021-2022 academic year to the best of my ability. I will see to facilitate the Associate Students and the University Community in a manner that is consistent with the ideals of an academic community. 
Schafer:
· With that I believe our senate is full with all 27 Senators. Thank you for being a part of the process. 
Marisela: 
· Hello I am Marisela Marquez. I serve as the executive director for Associated Students. I am also a lecturer for the department of Chicano/Chicana and political science studies. Welcome both of you. I want to emphasize we are all here and available to connect with you. I am the main contact along with Holly. It’s been a lot and we have a lot to be grateful for. I appreciate it. 
Holly Mayes:
· Thank you both, welcome. It’s so exciting to meet you virtually. I am looking forward to a great rest of the year together. 
Schafer: 
· Thank you all. These are great resources for you to reach out to anytime. They are tenured member of the association. I am the Internal Vice President. You all have my number, text me if you need anything. You also have your fellow senators. They have experience one quarter and some summer before you. I will be connecting with you in the future to go over all the intricacies of AS. Holly is the assistant director of government affairs. 

MOTION/SECOND: Gonzalez/Ramos
Motion language: motion to resume orders of the day and enter public forum.
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  6:51 PM

Office of the Student Advocate 	
Resignation of Matthew Sevilla as Academic/Financial Aid Caseworker. 
MOTION/SECOND: Castillo/Maia
Motion language: motion to approve the resignation of Matthew Sevilla as Academic/Financial Aid Caseworker
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken:  passed at 9:02 PM

M) Discussion Items

N) Remarks

O) Adjournment
MOTION/SECOND: Proxy Star/Rutenburg
Motion language: motion to adjourn at 9:03 PM 
ACTION: Vote:   CONSENT
Vote Taken: 9:03 PM

*Moved adjourned at 9:03 PM*
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Independent Auditors’ Report 


Senate 
Associated Students of the 
University of California, Santa Barbara 


Opinion 


We have audited the financial statements of the Associated Students of the University of California, 
Santa Barbara (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 
30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities, changes in net assets, functional expenses 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 


In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara as of June 
30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 


Basis for Opinion 


We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 


Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Associated Students of the 
University of California, Santa Barbara’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the 
date that the financial statements are issued. 


Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 


In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 


 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.


 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.


 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Associated Students of the University of California, Santa
Barbara’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.


 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.


 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Associated Students of the University of California, Santa
Barbara’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.


We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
We have previously audited the Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara’s 
2020 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial 
statements in our report dated March 30, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information 
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with 
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 
 
 
 
 


Nasif, Hicks, Harris & Co., LLP 
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2021 2020


ASSETS


Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,880,303$     $10,068,235
Accounts receivable 289,287 1,092,355         
Emergency student loans receivable, net 5,626 177,039
Bike shop inventory 48,585              42,800              


Total current assets 14,223,801       11,380,429       


Investments in marketable securities 2,300,122         1,773,229         


Property and equipment:
Furniture and office equipment 189,010            189,010            
Radio equipment 203,955            203,956            
Computers 27,190              27,190              
Production equipment 87,062              87,062              
Bike shop building 407,552            407,552            
Construction in progress 428,478            -                       
Less accumulated depreciation (694,196)          (665,484)          


Net property and equipment 649,051            249,286            


TOTAL ASSETS 17,172,974$     13,402,944$     


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 954,721$          318,811$          
Accrued compensation costs 1,010,452         340,212            


Total current liabilities 1,965,173         659,023            
Net assets without donor restrictions 15,207,801       12,743,921       


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 17,172,974$     13,402,944$     


AS OF JUNE 30,


ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT SANTA BARBARA


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION


See Notes to Financial Statements.
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2021 2020


Support and revenue:
Associated Students registration fees 10,274,770$     9,967,429$       
Student activities and co-sponsorships 86,410              83,304              
Donations 31,107              34,917              
Sales of services and products 21,277 863,304
Interest and dividends 95,252              144,059            
Realized (loss) gain on marketable securities (14,410)            3,258                
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities 490,709            (5,896)              
Miscellaneous income 50,585 19,784


Total support and revenue 11,035,700       11,110,159       


Expenses:
Program support 2,579,622         3,082,520         
Staff salaries 3,153,581         2,865,247         
Student salaries 491,143            1,163,630         
Special projects 660,938            723,142            
Grants 333,331            353,047            
Honoraria 330,070            266,871            
Travel 73,970              192,872            
Depreciation 28,712              27,357              
General and administrative 252,012            297,721            
University support 668,441            664,373            


Total expenses 8,571,820         9,636,780         


Increase in net assets 2,463,880         1,473,379         
Net assets at the beginning of year 12,743,921       11,270,542       


NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 15,207,801$     12,743,921$     


FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT SANTA BARBARA
ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE


See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Discretionary Office of
Lock-in Program Student Student Life Appropriation General and Total Total


Programs Board KCSB Programs Student Groups Remittances Total Administrative Total June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020


Program support 1,478,742$   678,764$      95,164$     154,122$        172,710$             -                        2,579,502$   120$                  120$             2,579,622$      3,082,520$      


Staff salaries 594,751        66,857          -                15,989            -                          -                        677,597        2,475,984          2,475,984     3,153,581        2,865,247        


Student salaries 141,195        46,836          189,524     67,438            17,656                 -                        462,649        28,494               28,494          491,143           1,163,630        


Special projects 531,168        -                   913            107,358          (14,023)               -                        625,416        35,522               35,522          660,938           723,142           


Grants 202,612        -                   -                130,719          -                          -                        333,331        -                        -                   333,331           353,047           


Honoraria 94,302          -                   -                226,968          8,800                   -                        330,070        -                        -                   330,070           266,871           


Travel 120               899               1,202         69,783            -                          -                        72,004          1,966                 1,966            73,970             192,872           


Depreciation 20,377          881               7,454         -                      -                          -                        28,712          -                        -                   28,712             27,357             


General and administrative -                   -                   -                -                      -                          -                        -                   252,012             252,012        252,012           297,721           


University support -                   -                   -                -                      -                          668,441            668,441        -                        -                   668,441           664,373           


TOTAL - JUNE 30, 2021 3,063,267$   794,237$      294,257$   772,377$        185,143$             668,441$          5,777,722$   2,794,098$        2,794,098$   8,571,820$      
       


TOTAL - JUNE 30, 2020 3,695,650$   674,836$      324,353$   1,353,690$     335,067$             664,373$          7,047,969$   2,588,811$        2,588,811$   9,636,780$      


ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT SANTA BARBARA
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 (WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR JUNE 30, 2020)


Program Services Support Services


See Notes to Financial Statements.
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2021 2020


Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets 2,463,880$       1,473,379$       
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
  to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:


Depreciation 28,712              27,357              
Realized loss (gain) on marketable securities 14,410              (3,258)              
Unrealized (gain) loss on marketable securities (490,709)          5,896                
(Increase) decrease in:


Accounts receivable 803,068            (299,929)          
Emergency student loans receivable, net 171,413            (124,382)          
Bike shop inventory (5,785)              (3,812)              


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 207,433            (1,238,544)       
Accrued compensation expense 670,240            (1,030)              


Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,862,662         (164,323)          


Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment -                       (40,577)            
Puchases of marketable securities (73,590)            (226,544)          
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 22,996              68,987              


Net cash used in investing activities (50,594)            (198,134)          


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,812,068         (362,457)          
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,068,235       10,430,692       


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 13,880,303$     10,068,235$     


SUPPLEMENTAL DATA:
Payables on acquisitions of property and equipment $428,477 -                       


FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,
 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT SANTA BARBARA
ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE


See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara ("Associated 
Students") is the official organization of the undergraduate students of the 
University of California, Santa Barbara ("UCSB"). Associated Students is 
supported primarily by registration fees collected from students, business service 
activities, and ticket sales from events. Associated Students is governed by five 
elected executive officers and 25 elected Senate members. These elected officials 
are assisted by various boards and committees and full-time professional staff. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, certificates of deposit with 
maturities of 90 days or less at the date of purchase, and short-term investment 
pool deposits. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
balances outstanding at year-end. Accounts receivable are made up of amounts 
due to Associated Students from the Regents of the University of California, 
various other UCSB organizations, and outside vendors. Historically, Associated 
Students has experienced a high rate of collection on these accounts receivables. 
Associated Students believes all outstanding balances are collectible at June 30, 
2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Emergency Student Loans Receivable 
 
Interest-free, short-term, emergency student loans, not to exceed $600, are issued 
to eligible students in financial need. Emergency student loans are due 30 days 
from the date of issuance. Emergency student loans receivable are stated at the 
amount management expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. 
Associated Students uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible 
emergency student loans receivable for the purpose of financial statement 
reporting. The allowance for uncollectible loans is based on prior years' collection 
history. 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 
Inventories 
 
Bike Shop inventory is recorded at cost, using the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Marketable Securities 
 
Marketable securities are recorded at quoted market values and all realized and 
unrealized gains and losses are included in the statement of activities and changes 
in net assets. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Associated Students capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $5,000 for property 
and equipment at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which ranges from 5 to 20 years. 
 
In December 2021, Associated Students entered into a construction contract with 
Cal-City Construction, Inc. for the new bike shop with an estimated build price of 
$3,660,000. The construction is planned from February through November 2022. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Associated Students is supported primarily by registration fees collected from all 
regularly registered undergraduate students carrying a study load of six or more 
units. Registration fees are collected by the University and remitted to Associated 
Students at the time tuition and other campus-based fees are due to the University 
for the Fall, Winter, Spring, and Summer quarters. Revenue from registration fees 
is recognized during the related school year. 
 
Associated Students recently adopted ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers”, using the modified retrospective method. Results for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 are presented under Topic 606. There was no material 
impact on the Associated Student’s financial statements as a result of the adoption 
of this new revenue standard, and there was no adjustment to beginning net assets 
on July 1, 2020. Associated Students continues to recognize revenue as described 
above. 
 
University Designations 
 
Associated Students registration fees are reported net of amounts collected by 
UCSB and remitted directly by UCSB to other organizations ("Designated Fees"). 
Associated Students includes Designated Fees in its budget because the amounts  
 


DRAFT







ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SANTA BARBARA 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 


 
 


See Independent Auditors’ Report. 
- 10 - 


Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 
were approved by the Associated Students ballot. As such, Associated Students  
does not include these amounts in revenue that is being reported on the statement 
of activities and changes in net assets. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, the amounts collected were $5,914,493 and $5,763,667, respectively.  
 
Donated Services 
 
No amounts are reflected in the financial statements for donated services since no 
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services. However, a 
substantial number of volunteers, including Senate and the Executive Officers, 
have donated significant amounts of their time to Associated Students. Some of 
these volunteers are partially compensated by honoraria. 


 
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 


Note 2:  Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 
 


The following reflects the Associated Students’ financial assets as of the balance 
sheet date, reduced by amounts not available for general use because of donor-
imposed restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date: 
 


Cash and cash equivalents $     13,880,303 
Accounts receivable, current 289,287 
Emergency student loans receivable, net 5,626 


  


Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs for 
General Expenditures within One Year  $ 14,175,216 


 
 
As part of Associated Students’ liquidity management plan, excess cash is 
deposited in the University of California Short Term Investment Pool (“STIP”) 
accounts in order to earn a moderate rate of interest on the accounts. Periodically, 
excess cash will also be invested in marketable securities. Management believes 
the Associated Students has adequate cash reserves to meet unexpected liquidity 
needs or other unforeseen financial distress. 
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Note 3:  Concentrations 
 
Associated Students has cash deposits with a local bank and cash deposits which 
are held in the STIP. Demand deposits are federally insured up to the maximum 
as determined by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Cash deposits held 
in the STIP are not insured. 


 
Note 4:  Emergency Student Loans Receivable 


 
The following table presents the age of emergency student loans receivable as of 
June 30, 2021: 
 


         


  1-30 
Days 


 31-60 
Days 


 > 60 
Days 


 Total 


Emergency student 
loans receivable 


  
$  3,593 


  
$            - 


  
$  4,763 


  
$ 8,356 


Allowance for un-
collectible loans 


  
- 


  
- 


  
(2,730) 


  
(2,730) 


         


         


Total  $  3,593  $            -  $  2,033  $ 5,626 


 
The following table presents the age of emergency student loans receivable as of 
June 30, 2020: 
 


         


  1-30 
Days 


 31-60 
Days 


 > 60 
Days 


 Total 


Emergency student 
loans receivable 


  
$  156,283 


  
$            - 


  
$  35,796 


  
$ 192,079 


Allowance for un-
collectible loans 


  
- 


  
- 


  
(15,040) 


  
(15,040) 


         


Total  $  156,283  $            -  $  20,756  $ 177,039 
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Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements of Investments 
 
FASB ASC 820 "Fair Value Measurements (ASC 820)" defines fair value as the 
exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement 
date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable 
inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs 
that may be used to measure fair value:  
 
Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets that are unadjusted and accessible at the 
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;  
 
Level 2 – Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not 
active, quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or financial 
instruments for which significant inputs are observable, either directly or 
indirectly; and 
 
Level 3 – Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the 
fair value measurement and unobservable. 
 
The asset's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based 
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
Valuation techniques used maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the 
investments at fair value, as of June 30, 2021: 
 


 


Recurring Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 


  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Fair Value 


Marketable 
securities 


  
$ 2,300,122 


  
$        - 


  
$        - 


  
$ 2,300,122 


Total  $ 2,300,122  $        -  $        -  $ 2,300,122 
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Note 5:  Fair Value Measurements of Investments - continued 
 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the 
investments at fair value, as of June 30, 2020: 
 


 


Recurring Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 


  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Fair Value 


Marketable 
securities 


  
$ 1,773,229 


  
$        - 


  
$        - 


  
$ 1,773,229 


Total  $ 1,773,229   $        -  $        -  $ 1,773,229  


 
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not 
be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. 
Furthermore, while Associated Students believe its valuation methods are 
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial 
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 


Note 6:  Investment in Marketable Securities 
 
Marketable Securities consist of the following as of June 30, 2021: 
 


      


   Cost Basis  Market 


Domestic equities   $ 1,163,123  $  1,864,274 


International equities   333,082  435,848 


Totals   $ 1,496,205  $  2,300,122 
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Note 6:  Investment in Marketable Securities - continued 
 
Realized loss of $14,410 and an unrealized gain of $490,709 were recognized for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Marketable Securities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2020: 
 


      


   Cost Basis  Market 


Domestic equities   $ 1,117,421  $  1,422,999 


International equities   329,684  350,230 
      


      


Totals   $ 1,447,105   $  1,773,229 
      


 
Realized gains of $3,258 and an unrealized loss of $5,896 were recognized for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 


 
Note 7:  Net Assets 


 
The Senate has the authority to designate net assets for specific purposes. The 
difference between total assets and total liabilities is net assets. It is not a measure 
of cash available for expenditures since the assets include equipment and 
inventory that are not readily convertible to cash. Net assets as of June 30, 2021 
and 2020 were undesignated.  
 


Note 8:  Related Party Transactions 
 
Associated Students, the University Center, and the University of California, 
Santa Barbara are related parties under the common control of the Regents of the 
University of California. 
 
Associated Student groups contract with various University of California, Santa 
Barbara departments in the ordinary course of operations. The University also 
provides payroll accounting services to Associated Students. Associated Students 
paid the University an administrative cost recovery charge of $45,000 and 
$44,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, in return for 
payroll, personnel, and other services. 
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Note 8:  Related Party Transactions - continued 


All Associated Students' staff are University employees hired by Associated 
Students. Support and technical staff are subject to University collective 
bargaining agreements. Associated Students reimburses the University for the 
costs of these employees. Associated Students reimbursed the University 
$3,112,726 and $2,865,247 for career employee costs, and $497,897 and 
$1,165,930 for student employee costs for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 


Full-time Associated Student employees are covered by the University pension 
plan. University pension coverage is provided under the University of California 
Retirement System which provides defined benefit pension coverage for 
employees at all University of California campuses. 


Note 9:  Associated Students Registration Fees 


The Associated Students constitution restricts use of a portion of Associated 
Students registration fees to specific purposes, including support of 
Communications Personnel, Educational Opportunity Program, Community 
Affairs Board, and others. In addition, the Senate through its by-laws designates 
another portion of registration fees for uses, including Campaign Issues, Financial 
Aid, and Legal Resources. 


Note 10: Income Tax Status 


Associated Students, as a non-profit organization, is generally exempt from 
income taxes. Organizations that are otherwise tax exempt are subject to income 
taxes on unrelated business income. Unrelated business income is income from 
activities unrelated to Associated Students’ tax exempt purpose. Income earned 
from investments only when purchased with borrowed funds is unrelated business 
income. Management does not believe that Associated Students had any unrelated 
business income during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 


In a letter dated November 30, 2017, the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") 
notified Associated Students that it had determined Associated Students meets the 
requirements for classification as a governmental unit or an affiliate of a 
governmental unit and is therefore not required to file a Federal Exempt 
Organization Annual Information Return (“Form 990”). In a letter dated April 18, 
2018, the California Franchise Tax Board notified Associated Students that it had 
also determined Associated Students meets the requirements for classification as a 
governmental unit or an affiliate of a governmental unit and is therefore also not 
required to file the California equivalent to the Federal Form 990. 
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Note 11: Contingencies 


University students have filed multiple State and Federal class action lawsuits 
alleging that UCSB has unlawfully withheld tuition and fee refunds in the wake of 
COVID-19 related campus actions. The classes include not only students, but also 
anyone else who paid tuition or other fees on their behalf. In response to UCSB’s 
motion to dismiss, all Federal lawsuits have been dismissed. The State actions 
have been consolidated in Los Angeles County Superior Court for pre-trial 
coordinated proceedings. A hearing is set for March 16, 2022. UCSB intends to 
continue to defend itself against the lawsuits. Also, UCSB continues to assess the 
potential impact of the lawsuits and cannot predict the outcome of the cases. 
However, in the event that a judgment is rendered against UCSB, the resulting 
liability could have a material and adverse impact on Associated Students 
financial position. 


Note 12: Subsequent Events 


Subsequent events were evaluated through January 26, 2022, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued and determined that there have 
been no events that have occurred that would require adjustment to or disclosures 
in the financial statements. 
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2021 2020


Appropriation remittances:
Daily Nexus 216,868$          215,081$          
Parking 239,838 243,182
University of California Student Association 211,735 206,110


TOTAL UNIVERSITY SUPPORT 668,441$          664,373$          


ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF THE
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT SANTA BARBARA


SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATION REMITTANCES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,


See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Independent Service Auditors' Report 
 
Senate 
Associated Students of the  
University of California, Santa Barbara 
 
Scope 
 
We have examined Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara (the 
"Organization") description of its procurement system for acquiring goods and services from outside 
vendors ("procurement system") for user entities throughout the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2021, and the suitability of design and operating effectiveness of the controls included in the 
description to achieve the related control objectives stated in the description, based on the criteria 
identified in the Organization's assertion. The controls and control objectives included in the 
description are those that management of the Organization believes are likely to be relevant to user 
entities' internal control over financial reporting, and the description does not include those aspects of 
the procurement system that are not likely to be relevant to user entities' internal control over 
financial reporting. 
 
Service Organization’s Responsibilities 
 
In Section II of this report, the Organization has provided an assertion about the fairness of the 
presentation of the description and the suitability of the design and operating effectiveness of the 
controls to achieve the related control objectives stated in the description. The Organization is 
responsible for preparing the description and assertion, including the completeness, accuracy, and 
method of presentation of the description and the assertion, providing the services covered by the 
description, specifying the control objectives and stating them in the description, identifying the risks 
that threaten the achievement of the control objectives, selecting the criteria stated in the assertion, 
and designing, implementing, and documenting controls that are suitably designed and operating 
effectively to achieve the related control objectives stated in the description. 
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Service Auditors’ Responsibilities 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the description and 
on the suitability of the design and operating effectiveness of the controls to achieve the related 
control objectives stated in the description, based on our examination.   
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform our examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether, in all material respects, based 
on the criteria in management's assertion, the description is fairly presented and the controls were 
suitably designed and operating effectively to achieve the related control objectives stated in the 
description throughout the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. We believe that the evidence 
we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
An examination of a description of a service organization’s system and the suitability of the design 
and operating effectiveness of controls involves— 
 
 performing procedures to obtain evidence about the fairness of the presentation of the description 


and the suitability of the design and operating effectiveness of the controls to achieve the related 
control objectives stated in the description, based on the criteria in management's assertion.  
 


 assessing the risks that the description is not fairly presented and that the controls were not 
suitably designed to achieve the related control objectives stated in the description.  
 


 testing the operating effectiveness of those controls that management considers necessary to 
provide reasonable assurance that the related control objectives stated in the description were 
achieved. 
 


 evaluating the overall presentation of the description, suitability of the control objectives stated in 
the description, and suitability of the criteria specified by the service organization in its assertion. 


 
Inherent Limitations 
 
The description is prepared to meet the common needs of a broad range of user entities and their 
auditors who audit and report on user entities’ financial statements and may not, therefore, include 
every aspect of the system that each individual user entity may consider important in its own 
particular environment. Because of their nature, controls at a service organization may not prevent, or 
detect and correct, all misstatements in acquiring goods and services from outside vendors. Also, the 
projection to the future of any evaluation of the fairness of the presentation of the description, or 
conclusions about the suitability of the design or operating effectiveness of the controls to achieve 
the related control objectives, is subject to the risk that controls at a service organization may become 
ineffective. 
 
Description of Tests of Controls 
 
The specific controls tested and the nature, timing, and results of those tests are listed on in Section 
IV of this report. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, in all material respects, based on the criteria described in the Organization's assertion 
in Section II of this report— 
 
1) The description fairly presents the procurement system that was designed and implemented 


throughout the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 


2) The controls related to the control objectives stated in the description were suitably designed to 
provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives would be achieved if the controls 
operated effectively throughout the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 


3) The controls operated effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives 
stated in the description were achieved throughout the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 


Restricted Use 
 
This report, including the description of tests of controls and results thereof in Section IV of this 
report, is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the service organization, 
user entities of the Organization's procurement system during some or all of the period July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021, and the auditors who audit and report on such user entities' financial 
statements or internal control over financial reporting. This report is not intended to be, and should 
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 


Nasif, Hicks, Harris & Co., LLP 
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III. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE ORGANIZATION CONTROLS 
 


a) Overview of Operations 
 
Associated Students of the University of California, Santa Barbara (the "Organization" or "service 
organization") is the official undergraduate student government at the University of California, Santa 
Barbara (the "University"). The purpose of the Organization is to provide for the promotion, 
regulation, and maintenance of the general and educational welfare of the undergraduate student 
body. In addition to being an advocate for the students on a University, local, state, and national 
level, the Organization funds a wide variety of programs, events, and other services, through its many 
boards, committees, commissions, commercial enterprises, student groups, and other bodies 
(collectively "Organizational Entities" and individually "Organizational Entity"). The Organization is 
supported primarily through undergraduate student registration fees and commercial enterprise 
activities. 
 
The Organization's policies and procedures provide a robust procurement system for acquiring goods 
and services from outside vendors. This system of controls is designed to eliminate the loss of 
resources, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to adhere to the University's 
policies and procedures—except when to do so would interfere with the Organization's ability to 
function and there exists an understanding between the University and the Organization regarding the 
exception. 
 
The Organization's policies and procedures provide budgetary guidelines, in which the authority to 
determine spending priorities are spread across the Organization, with no one individual or group 
authorized to determine such priorities alone. These guidelines, along with other formally 
documented policies and procedures, provide for a system of checks and balances in which power is 
shared throughout the Organization, and the function of purchasing goods and services for all of the 
various programs and events  
 


b) Organization and Management 
 
The Organization's Constitution divides the Organization's government into the following three 
separate branches, each with its own duties and powers: the legislative branch, the executive branch, 
and the judicial branch.  
 
The Organization's control environment is the responsibility of the Organization's legislative and 
executive branches of government, and its management, as they oversee all of the various 
Organizational Entities that make up the Organization. They ensure that the Organization's control 
activities, policies, standards, and procedures reflect positively on the Organizational missions and 
the services provided to the Organization's members—the University's undergraduate student body. 
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c) Management Philosophy and Operating Style


The mission of management of the Organization is to empower, mentor, guide, and support students
to deepen and enhance civic engagement and social responsibility by:


 Facilitating learning through student initiated projects and programs.


 Ensuring student inclusion in shared governance of the University.


 Initiating and facilitating collaboration within the University community and beyond.


 Respecting students' agency to create their own path.


 Safeguarding the continuity, financial stability, and institutional memory of the Organization for
current and future students.


In safeguarding the continuity and financial stability of the Organization, management is committed 
to, and places a high priority on, the establishment of organizational controls. An operational 
emphasis is placed on timely and accurate financial reporting such that management and other 
decision making bodies may be well informed. Meetings are held regularly where management 
encourages employees and other attendees to raise issues so that they may be addressed accordingly. 


Management continuously emphasizes the value of teamwork, professionalism, flexibility, and 
accountability.  


d) Assignment of Authority and Responsibility


The legislative branch of the Organization's government (the "Senate") is made up of 25 elected
members. The Senate is the supreme policy making body of the Organization. The Senate is
responsible for promoting the welfare and interest of the members of the Organization and to
supervise and maintain the policies, properties, and conduct of the Organization. The Senate has
authority over the responsibility for all the Organization's revenues and expenses.


The executive branch of the Organization's government is made up the following five elected
officers: the President, the Internal Vice President, the External Vice President of Local Affairs, the
External Vice President of Statewide Affairs, the Student Advocate General. Together with boards,
commissions, committees, and other agencies authorized by the Senate, the elected officers are
responsible for executing the policies and programs of the Organization. The President is responsible
for formulating an annual budget to be submitted to the Senate for approval.


The judicial branch of the Organization's government is made up of five members, individually
appointed by the executive branch and ratified by a two-thirds majority vote in the Senate. It is the
responsibility of the judicial branch to adjudicate completely and diligently questions pertaining to
the Organization's policies and procedures and other organizing documents.
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The Organization is managed by an Executive Director and multiple Directors and Assistant 
Directors. These professional staff members are selected to manage the Organization by the Senate 
and their functioning is the responsibility of the President; however, they are all technically 
employed by the University.  
 
Ultimate responsibility for all activities within the Organization is shared primarily amongst the 
legislative and executive branches of government and management, including the internal control 
system. This includes the assignment of authority and responsibility for operating activities, and 
establishment of reporting relationships and authorization protocols.  
 


e) Organizational Structure 
 
An entity's organizational structure provides a framework within which its activities for achieving 
entity-wide objectives are planned, executed, controlled, and monitored. Significant aspects of 
establishing an effective organizational structure include defining key areas of authority and 
responsibility and establishing appropriate lines of reporting. The following is a description of the 
Organization's organizational structure.  
 


 
 
Each department is managed by individuals who have exceptional experience and education in their 
field. Each manager has responsibilities outlined by published job descriptions that provide general 
functions and specific duties. These provide the basis for performance evaluations.  
 


f) Training 
 
Training is an important part of the Organization's commitment to excellence. Members of the 
Organization in positions of leadership, and staff alike, participate regularly in training sessions in-
house to ensure that they appropriately perform their duties and keep up with the latest developments 
that may affect their roles within the Organization. In-house training is delivered through workshops, 
one-on-one, and online. Additionally, management encourages all members of the Organization to 
attend outside seminars and other related educational events to foster an atmosphere of technical and 
professional growth throughout the Organization. 
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g) Hiring Practices and Human Resources Policies 
 
The University and Organization share the responsibility of hiring staff members and performing all 
other human resource activities. The reason for this shared responsibility is that the Organization's 
staff members, including the Executive Director, are technically employees of the University. The 
Organization adheres to all University personnel policies and procedures in performing its human 
resource activities. 
 
The selection and termination of the Executive Director is the responsibly of the Senate. In turn, the 
Executive Director is responsible for the appointment and termination of all the Organization's other 
staff members. Before deciding to hire a vacant staff position or create a new position, the Executive 
Director must receive the Senate's approval. In hiring for a vacant or newly created staff position, the 
President appoints members of the Organization to a "search" committee established by the Senate. It 
is the responsibility of this committee to participate in the new hire selection process. The Executive 
Director's appointment will not be accepted if the search committee did not participate in the 
selection process.  
 
The University's Human Resources Employment Unit assists the Organization in: 


 
 Developing effective job postings using the University's Online Application and Classification 


Information System. 
 


 Developing a diverse candidate pool through the use of strategic advertising. 
 


 Providing guidance on screening applications, interviewing, reference checking, and setting 
salaries. 


 
To ensure that individuals are selected who possess the qualifications to perform the duties of 
positions most effectively, background checks are performed on final job candidates. 
 
Generally, a career employee is in a probationary status for the first six months of employment. 
These employees receive a written performance evaluation at the mid-point and conclusion of the 
probationary period. All employees receive written performance evaluations annually by department 
managers to provide employees with an evaluation of their performance and to provide performance 
feedback.  
 


h) Integrity and Ethics 
 
The Organization's governing bodies and management establishes a control environment within 
which both all members of the Organization and the Organization's staff members must function. It is 
a framework for all aspects of internal control. The control environment includes a commitment to 
the highest ethical standards that will never compromise the truth of the Organization's values. 
Members of the Organization and the Organization's staff members demonstrate professionalism 
through responsibility, accountability, reliability in all interactions with each other. These values 
have been established as performance review criteria and are used for employee evaluations. 
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i) Code of Ethics 
 
The Organization's conduct is governed by a standard of ethics to provide guidance to its members 
and employees about the way the Organization intends to conduct operations. The Organization's 
policies and procedures provide a code of conduct for all members and employees to follow. 
Responsibilities covered include behave in a manner that reflects creditably on the Organization, 
adhere to the Organization's policies and procedures and to the rules of duly constituted 
Organizational Entities, pursue goals that reflect the values of their respective Organizational Entities 
and the Organization as a whole, treat each other and those in the community with behavior that 
fosters a safe, inclusive environment for everyone, and encourage and be ready to participate in 
respectful, open communication that is conducive to constructive collaboration and dialogue within 
and between each respective Unit. These responsibilities are regularly communicated to the 
Organization's members and employees. 
 


j) Commitment to Excellence 
 
Excellence should reflect the knowledge and skills required to accomplish tasks that define an 
individual's job. Through consideration of an entity's objectives and the strategies and plans for 
achievement of those objectives, management specifies the competence levels required for particular 
jobs and translates those levels into requisite knowledge and skills. The Organization has analyzed 
and defined the tasks and knowledge requirements that comprise the positions within the 
Organization. They consider such factors to the extent to which individuals must exercise judgment 
and the extent of related supervision when making hiring decisions. The Organization communicates 
this to personnel through the interview and performance evaluation process. 
 


k) Information and Communication 
 
The Organization utilizes various methods of communication to ensure its members and staff 
understand their individual roles and Organizational controls. On a daily basis, the Administrative 
Office closely communicates to ensure accuracy and timeliness of processing purchases. Meetings 
are held frequently where in depth discussions and analyses of various elements of the procurement 
system occur.   
 


l) Monitoring 
 
Annual risk assessments and audits are used to identify specific internal and external control 
improvement opportunities. Management designates personnel to monitor selected projects during 
design and implementation to consider their impact on the control environment prior to 
implementation. Risk assessment and monitoring is primarily the responsibility of the Student 
Technical Assistance and Internal Operations Unit and the Executive Director. However, all directors 
and assistant directors are regularly required to report exceptions and aid in the development of the 
Organization's system of internal control. The course of monitoring responsibility is as shown on the 
organization chart.  
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m) Risk Assessment/Management 
 
The Organization maintains insurance coverage against various risks under the University's broad 
range of insurance programs and policies. The University insures its operations with a combination 
of self-insurance programs and commercial insurance policies. The self-insurance programs provide 
the backbone of the University's overall insurance portfolio, in which the Organization is covered for 
matters such as wrongful acts arising out of the employment process (i.e. wrongful termination, 
sexual harassment, and discrimination), general liability claims, and employee work related injuries 
or illnesses. Commercial insurance polies that augment the self-insurance programs are designed to 
cover more specific exposures (e.g. accidental/medical coverage for staff engaged in work-related 
travel). 
 
The University requires contractors, vendors, and suppliers who provide goods and services to the 
University to have insurance and to provide the University with Certificates of Insurance as evidence 
of coverage. The Organization works closely with the University's Risk Management Office to 
ensure it follows these same guidelines. The types and limits of insurance the University requires are 
based on the contractor’s or vendor’s scope of work and the risks associated with the goods or 
services they are providing to the University. 
 
Understanding the importance of safeguarding the continuity, financial stability, and institutional 
memory of the Organization for current and future students, the Organization has established capital 
reserves from funds that have accumulated over the years. Reserve policies and guidelines require 
funds to be kept on deposit in federally insured banks, savings and loans, credit unions, University 
Short Term Interest Programs or brokerage firms, which provide casualty insurance to depositors at 
least equal to the of federally insured institutions. Funds kept on deposit in a brokerage firm must be 
managed by a Securities and Exchange Commission, Registered Investment Advisor who is 
registered with the International Board of Standards and Practices for Certified Financial Planners. 
Funds not kept in a federal insured bank, savings and loan, or credit union must be reviewed 
quarterly by the Investment Advisory Committee and the Executive Director. The Chair of the 
Investment Advisory Committee must report to the Senate at least quarterly regarding such deposits. 
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IV. SUMMARY OF CONTROL OBJECTIVES, CONTROL ACTIVITIES, TESTING PERFORMED BY INDEPENDENT SERVICE 
AUDITORS, AND RESULTS OF TESTING 


 
CONTROL OBJECTIVE 1: 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that the Organization obtains goods and services in accordance with the Organization's policies and procedures, University policies and procedures, 
and in compliance with laws and regulations. 
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


1.1 The Finance and Business Committee is the financial arm of the 
Senate, responsible for all budget allocations of the Organization's 
funds and for the education and enforcement of the Organization's 
financial policies and procedures, which include the requirement that 
the Organization follow all University policies and procedures and 
comply with all laws and regulations. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the role of the Finance and Business 
Committee, as the financial arm of the Senate. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Organizations policies and procedures regarding the 
responsibilities of the Finance and Business Committee. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


1.2 Members of the Finance and Business Committee participate in 
training to ensure they understand the Organization's policies and 
procedures and the rules over procurement, including pre-
authorization, bidding, contract approval, purchase orders, and 
receiving. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding training that the Finance and 
Business Committee receives. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected training records for the Finance and Business Committee to 
determine whether they received training prior to beginning their role on 
the Committee. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


1.3 All members of the Organization involved in the procurement 
process, and the Organization's staff members, are educated by 
members of the Finance and Business Committee and staff advisors 
to ensure they are familiar with the rules over procurement, including 
pre-authorization, bidding, contract approval, purchase orders and 
receiving, depending on their level of involvement in the procurement 
process. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding ongoing training provided by the 
Finance and Business Committee. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected Authorized Signer training records for a selection of 
Organizational Entities to determine whether each respective Authorized 
Signer selected received training from the Finance and Business 
Committee or department advisors. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


1.4 Finance and Business Committee members meet with Organizational 
Entities on an ongoing basis to help with requisition procedures for 
requesting purchase orders, encumbrances, checks, and transfers (of 
funds from other Organizational Entities). 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the ongoing relationship between the 
Finance and Business Committee members and each of the 
Organizational Entities. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 1 (CONTINUED):  
Controls provide reasonable assurance that the Organization obtains goods and services in accordance with the Organization's policies and procedures, University policies and procedures, 
and in compliance with laws and regulations. 
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


1.5 Final approval of purchase requisitions must be approved by the 
Executive Director or by two managers (Directors or Assistant 
Directors). Once the Executive Director or two managers verify that a 
purchase requisition has been processed appropriately, and that the 
related purchase does not violate the Organization or University's 
policies and procedures, and/or any laws or regulations, the Executive 
Director or two managers sign the purchase requisition. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the steps taken before making the 
final decision to approve a purchase. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed that the Executive Director or two managers perform the final 
approval of a purchase by signing the related purchase requisition. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether each of the forms include the signature of the 
Executive Director or the signatures of two managers. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 2:  
Controls provide reasonable assurance that goods and services purchased by the Organization are authorized and are for the use of the Organization in accomplishing its purpose.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


2.1 Each Organizational Entity, other than Student Groups registered 
with the University's Office of Student Life, must formulate and 
submit an annual budget request to the Finance and Business 
Committee. In accordance with the Organization's policies and 
procedures, members of the Organizational Entity must present their 
budget request to the Budget Allocation Committee, comprised of the 
Finance and Business Committee, the Senate, and all of the 
Organization's Officers. At this time the Organizational Entity will 
answer questions from the Budget Allocation Committee regarding 
their budget request. Organizational Entities formulate budget request 
with the assistance of a member of the Finance and Business 
Committee. The budgets for Student Groups are consolidated into 
two line items on the Organization's annual budget and are 
determined by the Budget Allocation Committee. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process each Organizational 
Entity must follow in formulating its budget request in order to comply 
with the Organization's policies and procedures. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Organization's annual budget for the testing period. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected the Organization's records to determine whether a selection of 
Organizational Entities each submitted an annual budget request to the 
Finance and Business Committee. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


2.2 Budgets are prepared by the President and approved by the Senate in 
a robust and formal process which involves the input from sources 
throughout the Organization, including the budget requests submitted 
by each of the Organizational Entities. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the role of the President and the role 
of the Senate in formulating the annual budget. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected Senate meeting minutes to determine whether budget requests 
were approved for a selection of Organizational Entities. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


2.3 Organizational Entities, other than Student Groups, formally 
document their decision to purchase goods and services in their 
meeting minutes. The Senate reviews these minutes and approves 
each purchase if the Senate believes the purchase is an appropriate 
use of funds according to the Organizational Entity's budget. 
Approval must be obtained from the Finance and Business 
Committee for certain purchases, such as food and travel, rather than 
the greater legislative body.  
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the Senate's process for determining 
the appropriateness of purchase requests listed in Organizational Entities' 
meeting minutes. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Senate approve meeting minutes of an Organizational 
Entity that documented the decision to make a purchase in the Senate 
approved meeting minutes. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected meeting minutes for Organizational Entities, other than 
Student Groups, to determine whether they include a decision to 
purchase goods or services for a selection of vendor payments. Verify 
support for each vendor payment also includes an approval by the Senate 
or the Finance and Business Committee. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 2 (CONTINUED): 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that goods and services purchased by the Organization are authorized and are for the use of the Organization in accomplishing its purpose.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


2.4 Each Student Group is allocated $250 of discretionary funds per year. 
Student Groups may request additional funds during the year. The 
allocation of additional funds must be approved by the Senate or the 
Finance and Business Committee, as do all purchases made by 
Student Groups. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the Senate's process for determining 
the appropriateness of purchase requests made by Student Groups. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Senate approve a Student Group's purchase request and 
document its approval in Senate meeting minutes. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspect support for the Senate or the Finance and Business Committee's 
approval of Student Group purchases, including purchases made with 
funds allocated to the Student Group above the initial $250 each Student 
Group is allocated for a selection of vendor payments. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 3: 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that vendors are selected in accordance with the Organization's policies and procedures, University policies and procedures, and in compliance with 
laws and regulations. 
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


3.1 In recent years the Organization has strived to bring the 
Organization's procurement system in closer alignment with the 
University's procurement system. For the selection of vendors the 
Organization works closely with the University's Procurement 
Services Department. In recent years, the Organization has increased 
its use of the University’s campus wide purchasing system, Gateway. 
Vendors are vetted by Gateway to deliver the best overall value in 
cost, quality, and service over time. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process of working with the 
University's Procurement Services Department to better align the 
Organization's procurement system with that of the University's. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


3.2 Organizational Entities, with the help of members of the Finance and 
Business Committee, follow sustainable and socially responsible 
purchasing guidelines, outlined in the Organization's policies and 
procedures, when selecting vendors. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding policies and procedures for selecting 
sustainable and socially responsible vendors. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed that the Organization had developed policies and procedures 
outlining sustainable and socially responsible purchasing guidelines. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


3.3 The Organization's policies and procedures prohibit members from 
participating in matters where a conflict of interest exists, and 
identify parameters to avoid such a conflict of interest. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding policies and procedures surrounding 
conflicts of interest. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 4:  
Controls provide reasonable assurance that all Purchase Requisitions and Purchase Orders are properly authorized and processed in a timely fashion.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


4.1 Organizational Entities are required to have Authorized Signers, 
approved by leadership of the Organizational Entity, on file with the 
Administrative Office. Signers may be undergraduate students, 
department advisors, or University staff members whom are 
responsible for financial matters. Authorized Signers are provided 
training regarding the rules over procurement, including 
preauthorization, vendor selection, bidding, contract approval, 
purchase orders, and receiving. 
 


▪ Inspected Authorized Signer forms for a selection of Organizational 
Entities to determine whether each Organization Entity had at least two 
Authorized Signers on file with the Administrative Office. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


4.2 Every purchase requisition is reviewed, approved, and signed by two 
of the requesting Organizational Entity's Authorized Signers before 
being further processed by the Administration Office. The purchase 
requisition must not be made payable to either of the Authorized 
Signers. For this reason, it is suggested that each Organizational 
Entity have three Authorized Signers on file with the Administration 
Office, in case a purchase requisite needs to be made payable to one 
of the Authorized Signers. 
 


▪ Observed Authorized Signers sign a purchase requisition submitted to 
the Administrative Office for approval. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether each included two signatures of the requesting 
Organizational Entity's Authorized Signers on file with the 
Administrative Office. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


4.3 Purchase requisitions submitted to the Administrative Office are 
logged into the purchase requisition logbook by the Administrative 
Assistant in order to properly identify and track the purchase 
requisition during handling. 
 


▪ Observed the Administrative Assistant log a purchase requisition in the 
purchase requisition logbook. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions and the purchase requisition logbook for 
a selection of vendor payments to determine whether each purchase 
requisition was logged and that the purchase requisitions observed were 
logged in chronological order. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


4.4 Purchase requisitions submitted to the Administrative Office are 
reviewed by the Administrative Assistant to assure they are complete 
and accurate. Incomplete and/or inaccurate purchase requisitions are 
promptly returned to the Organizational Entity to be corrected. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding factors involved in determining the 
completeness and accuracy of purchase requisitions submitted to the 
Administrative Office. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether evidence exists to suggest that the purchase 
requisition had been reviewed by the Administrative Assistant. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 4 (CONTINUED): 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that all Purchase Requisitions and Purchase Orders are properly authorized and processed in a timely fashion.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


4.5 The Administrative Assistant verifies the signatures of the two 
Authorized Signers listed on each purchase requisition by verifying 
(1) the Administrative Office has a completed Authorized Signer 
form on file for each signer, and (2) that the signatures of the 
Authorized Signers matches the signatures on file in the 
Administrative Office. Once the signatures are verified, the 
Administrative Assistant initials the purchase requisition and the 
purchase requisition sent to the Record Keeping Specialist for further 
processing. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding factors involved in determining the 
appropriateness of Authorized Signers' signatures listed on purchase 
requisitions. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Administrative Assistant determine whether Authorized 
Signers of a purchase requisition were appropriate under the 
circumstances. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether each had been initialed by the Administrative 
Assistant. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


4.6 The Record Keeping Specialist verifies that the Organizational Entity 
requesting funds, in the form of a purchase requisition, has funds 
available in its account for the purchase listed on the purchase 
requisition, and that appropriate support is attached to the purchase 
requisition (e.g. estimates, contracts or performance agreements, 
receipts). Once available funds are verified and it is determined that 
the purchase requisition includes appropriate support, the Record 
Keeping Specialist initials the purchase requisition and sends it to the 
Assistant Director for Finance and Budgets for further processing. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process involved in determining 
whether an Organizational Entity has funds available in its account to 
purchase an item submitted on a purchase requisition. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the Record Keeping Specialist check the remaining balance of 
an Organizational Entity. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether each had been initialed by the Record Keeping 
Specialist. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


4.7 The Assistant Director for Finance and Budgets verifies that the 
purchase listed on a purchase requisition was approved by the Senate, 
or if applicable, the Finance and Business Committee. Once the 
Senate or Finance and Business Committee approval is verified, the 
Assistant Director for Finance and Budgets initials the purchase 
requisition and sends it to the Executive Director or two managers for 
final approval. 
 


▪ Inspected purchase requisitions for a selection of vendor payments to 
determine whether each had been initialed by the Assistant Director for 
Finance and Budget. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 5:  
Controls provide reasonable assurance that contracts are executed in accordance with the Organization's policies and procedures, University policies and procedures, and in compliance with 
laws and regulations.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


5.1 Every contract that the Organization enters into must be approved and 
signed by the Executive Director. The Executive Director must sign 
all contracts before the Organization is legally bound to the speaker 
or performer.  


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process of hiring performance 
artists and guest speakers. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed a performance contract be prepared by the Organization that 
will be sent to a performance artist or guest speaker. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected a selection of performance contracts for events held during the 
testing period to determine whether each contract was approved and 
signed by the Executive Director. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


5.2 Performance contracts must be completed two weeks before the event 
for a speaker or performer to be paid before the event. If a contract is 
not executed and submitted to the Administration Office at least two 
weeks before the event, the speaker or performer will be paid after the 
event. Most speakers and performers are paid after the event. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the timing of payments made to 
performance artists and guest speakers. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected a selection of payments made to performance artists and guest 
speakers during the testing period to determine whether each payment 
was made after the respective event if the related performance contract 
was not executed and submitted to the Administrative Office at least two 
weeks before the event. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


5.3 For insurance matters related to performance contracts, the 
Organization works closely with the University's Risk Management 
and Insurance Office. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process of working with the 
University's Risk Management and Insurance Office for insurance 
matters related to performance contracts. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspect insurance certificates for a selection of performance contracts to 
determine whether each insurance certificate lists the coverage stipulated 
under the terms of the performance contract. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


5.4 The Executive Director reports to the President, the Finance and 
Business Committee, and the Senate on all contracts on an ongoing 
basis throughout the year. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process followed by the 
Executive Director for reporting on all contracts throughout the year. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 6: 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that goods received are in the same quantity and quality as goods authorized.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


6.1 Goods are received by the Organizational Entities that requested the 
purchases. The Organizational Entities are trained by the Finance and 
Business Committee to notify the Administrative Office if there are 
any exceptions in the receipt of their goods, or if any of the goods are 
subsequently returned. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the process for receiving goods and 
services. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed Organizational Entity receive goods purchased by the 
Organization. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 7: 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that payments made to vendors are valid, accurate, and timely.  
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


7.1 Before each vendor payment is processed, the Record Keeping 
Specialist verifies the purchase authorization, shipping document, and 
accuracy of the vendor invoice. Satisfied the payment should be 
processed, the Record Keeping Specialist verifies that all information 
to be entered into the accounting system is included on the purchase 
requisition, including the applicable general ledger account numbers. 
Once the payment is processed in the accounting system (by someone 
other than the Record Keeping Specialist) the Record Keeping 
Specialist attaches the purchase requisition to all other support, and 
notes on the purchase requisition the date that the payment was 
processed and the amount still owed to the vendor related to the 
purchase, which is zero in most instances. 
 


▪ Inquired of management and the Record Keeping Specialist regarding 
processing vendor payments. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed vendor payment processing procedures performed by the 
Record Keeping Specialist. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected support for a selection of vendor payments to determine 
whether support for each included a purchase requisition listing all 
information input into the accounting system and the payment date. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


7.2 Checks are prenumbered, the sequence is accounted for regularly, and 
unissued checks are controlled and kept in a secure location. Vendor 
payments are processed in the Organization's accounting system by 
an Administrative Staff Member. The Administrative Staff Member 
must request management retrieve unissued check stock from the 
secure location. Management provides the Administrative Staff 
Member the number of checks requested. Management then logs the 
check sequence, the number of checks provided, the current date, and 
his or her initials in the check stock logbook. The Administrative 
Staff Member then prints the vendor payments on the checks 
provided by management.  
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding access to unissued check stock. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed management access secure location where unissued check 
stock is stored to retrieve the number of checks requested by the 
Administrative Staff Member. Observed management log the sequence 
of checks removed from unissued check stock. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected the check stock log to determine whether the check numbers 
for a selection of vendor payments were each listed in the check stock 
log along with the corresponding payment date and initials of the 
manager responsible for removing the checks from the secured location. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


7.3 Check signing authority for the Organization rests solely with the 
Executive Director. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding check signing authority. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected the signature on checks made out to vendors to determine 
whether all are signed by the Executive Director for a selection of 
vendor payments. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 7 (CONTINUED): 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that payments made to vendors are valid, accurate, and timely. 
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


7.4 The Executive Director has authorized the use of her signature in a 
check signing machine that is kept in a secure location. Two 
Administrative Staff Members must request and use the check 
signing machine together in the manager's office. The Administrative 
Staff Member that operates the machine must not be the same 
member that processed the payment in the accounting system. The 
two Administrative Staff Members are required to log the check 
signing machine's meter reading before use and after use, their 
initials, and the current date on the signature machine log stored with 
the machine. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the use of the Executive Director's 
signature in a check signing machine. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed management access secure location where check signing 
machine is stored. Observed Two Administrative Staff Members operate 
the machine and enter applicable information in the signature machine 
log. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected the signature machine log to determine whether any gaps exist 
in the sequence of logs made during the testing period and whether every 
log made during the testing period includes the initials of at least two 
different Administrative Staff Members. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


7.5 Bank reconciliations are prepared and reviewed in a timely fashion. 
Bank statements are received in the mail or downloaded online and 
reviewed by a responsible person other than the person who 
reconciles the bank account before being submitted for reconciliation. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding bank reconciliation procedures. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Inspected bank reconciliations prepared for the testing period to 
determine whether the bank reconciliations were performed by a staff 
member other than one who initially received the bank statement. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


7.6 Vendor payments are processed daily, as necessary, in order to 
facilitate timely payments to vendors. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding the timing of vendor payments. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed the check stock logbook and the check signing machine 
logbook and noted that entries were generally made on a daily basis. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


7.7 Management performs a periodic review of open purchase 
requisitions and purchase orders and investigates long outstanding 
unpaid items. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding open purchase requisitions and open 
purchase orders outstanding for a significant amount of time. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 8: 
Controls provide reasonable assurance that credits for returned goods and other adjustments are recorded correctly and only when appropriate. 
 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


8.1 The Assistant Director of Finance and Budgets posts credits for errors 
and other adjustments in the accounting system and notifies each 
applicable Organizational Entity of the credit to their account. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding processing credits for returned goods 
and other adjustments. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


8.2 Organizational Entities' account balances reflect credits for returned 
goods and other adjustments and are verified by the Authorized 
Signers of each Organizational Entity, when applicable. 
 


▪ Observed Authorized Signer verify credit to Organizational Entity's 
account for returned goods. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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CONTROL OBJECTIVE 9:  
Controls provide reasonable assurance that accrued liability balances reported are complete, accurate, and reported on a timely basis. 


 


Description of Controls Testing Performed Results 


9.1 Management reviews Organizational expense reports periodically to 
provide proper oversight of each Organizational Entity's activities, 
perform Budget versus Actual analyses, and identify any significant 
unauthorized transactions. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding monitoring Organizational Entities' 
activities. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


9.2 Management reviews the Organization's financial statements on a 
periodic basis and investigates significant variances from budgeted 
and expected results. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding monitoring the financial performance 
of the Organization. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


9.3 The Organization holds the books open for its fiscal year until all 
invoices related to purchase requisitions and purchase orders dated 
during the year are received and processed in the accounting system. 
Payments are processed in the accounting system promptly once 
invoices are received, and the amounts are recorded on an accrued 
liability schedule that is reconciled to the general ledger. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding processing invoices received after the 
end of the current year that relate to current year expenses. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed schedule of vendor payments made after the end of the current 
year that relate to goods and services received during the current year. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


9.4 Management reviews subsequent year reimbursement purchase 
requisitions carefully to ensure current year expenses and accrued 
liabilities are captured for such reimbursements. Purchase 
Requisitions change color each year and remain one color the entire 
year to aid this process. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding purchase requisition cutoff 
procedures performed on and around the end of the year. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


▪ Observed that purchase requisitions are a different color each year. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 


9.5 As part of the closing process, Management prepares a report of all 
payments made after the end of the Organization's fiscal year and 
performs a search for unrecorded liabilities. In the event a payment 
was recorded in the wrong year, Management will adjust the 
Organization's accounts accordingly. 
 


▪ Inquired of management regarding procedures performed to assure 
accrued liabilities balances are complete. 
 


▪ No exceptions noted. 
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V. INFORMATION PROVIDED BY INDEPENDENT SERVICE AUDITOR 
 
Purpose and Objectives of Report 
 
This report is intended to provide users of the Organization's procurement system with information 
about controls at the Organization that may affect the processing of transactions and to provide users 
with information about the operating effectiveness of the controls that were tested. This report, when 
combined with an understanding and assessment of the internal controls at the user entities, is 
intended to assist the user auditor in (1) planning the audit of the user's financial statements and in (2) 
assessing control risk for assertions in the user's financial statements that may be affected by controls 
at the Organization.  
 
Our examination was restricted to the description of the system, control objectives, and the related 
control procedures specified in Section II by the Organization's management and was not extended to 
procedures described elsewhere in this report but noted listed, or to procedures that may be in effect 
at the user entity. The examination was conducted in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 18, Reporting on Controls at a Service Organization (SOC 1), 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. It is each user auditor's responsibility to 
evaluate this information in relation to the controls in place at each user entity. 
 
The description of the system and control objectives are the responsibility of the Organization's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion about whether— 
 
1) The description fairly presents the procurement system that was designed and implemented 


throughout the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
 


2) The controls related to the control objectives stated in the description of the system were suitably 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives would be achieved if the 
controls operated effectively throughout the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
 


3) The controls operated effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the control objectives 
stated in the description were achieved throughout the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 


  
Tests of Operating Effectiveness 


 
Our tests of the operational effectiveness of controls were designed to cover a representative number 
of transactions throughout the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, for each of the controls, which 
are designed to achieve the specific control objectives. In selecting particular tests of the operational 
effectiveness of controls, we considered (a) the nature of the items being tested, (b) the types of 
available evidential matter, (c) the nature of the audit objectives to be achieved, (d) the assessed level 
of control risk, and (e) the expected efficiency and effectiveness of the test. 
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The tests performed to evaluate the effectiveness of control activities, and the results of those tests 
are detailed in Section II of this report and are the responsibility of the service auditor. Descriptions 
of the tests performed are detailed below: 
 
Test  Description 
      Inspection  Inspected documents and reports indicating the performance of the control 


activity, often through the use of sampling. 
 


Observation  Observed the application of a specific control activity. 
 


Inquiry  Made inquiries of appropriate personnel responsible for the performance of 
the control activity and corroborated responses with management.  
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January 26, 2022 
 
 


Senate - Associated Students 
of the University of California at Santa Barbara 
 
Dear Senate Members: 
 
Annually, we review with the Senate and management those matters that are required by 
generally accepted auditing standards to be communicated, as well as other matters we believe 
would be of interest to the Senate and management. The attached report outlines those areas 
where we are required to communicate and certain other matters related to the audit of the 
financial statements of Associated Students of the University of California at Santa Barbara for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. If you have any questions, please contact me at (805) 966-1521. 


 
Sincerely, 
 
Nasif, Hicks, Harris & Co., LLP 
 
By, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sarah E. Turner 
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I. Scope 
 
• The matters raised in this report are only those which have come to our attention arising from 


our audit that we believe need to be brought to the attention of management and the Senate. 
They are not a comprehensive record of all the matters arising, and in particular, we cannot be 
held responsible for reporting all risks in your business or all internal control weaknesses. This 
report has been prepared solely for the use of management and the Senate and should not be 
quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third 
party is accepted as the report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, any other 
purpose. 


• Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, it is possible that material misstatements of the 
financial statements resulting from fraud and, to a lesser extent from error, may not have been 
detected. 


• We have considered the Associated Students of the University of California at Santa Barbara's 
internal control structure in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.  
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II. Results of the Audit 
 
• We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Associated Students of the 


University of California at Santa Barbara (the "Associated Students") for the year ended June 
30, 2021 and issued an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. 


• The primary purposes of this report are to present significant findings arising from our audit 
procedures and to communicate recommended enhancements to the internal control structure 
which came to our attention during our audit. 


• We received full cooperation from management who provided us with complete access to the 
books and records of the Associated Students. There were no restrictions on the scope of our 
audit procedures. 
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III. Required Communications 
 


Matter to be Communicated Our Response 
 


Auditor's responsibility under Generally Accepted 
Auditing Standards 
 


 


• The auditor should communicate the level of 
responsibility assumed under Generally Accepted 
Auditing Standards (GAAS). 


• Our audit is designed to obtain reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance about the financial statements. This was also 
communicated in our engagement letter dated February 3, 
2021. 


   


Significant Accounting Policies and Unusual 
Transactions 


 


 


• The auditor should determine that those charged with 
governance are informed about the initial selection of and 
changes in significant accounting policies, including 
critical accounting policies, as well as the methods used 
to account for significant unusual transactions and the 
auditor's judgment about the quality of accounting 
principles. 


• We have reviewed the Associated Students' accounting 
policies and believe that they are reasonable. 


 


  
 


Other Information in Documents Containing Audited 
Financial Information 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be informed as to 
the auditor's responsibility for information in a document 
containing audited financial statements, as well as any 
procedures performed and the related results. 


• We are responsible for the review of other information in 
all documents containing audited financial statements to 
ensure their consistency with the financial statements. To 
our knowledge, no such documents have been issued. 


  
 


Significant Audit Adjustments 
 


 


• All significant adjustments arising from the audit should 
be communicated to management. 


• A listing of all proposed journal entries was previously 
given and accepted by management. 


  
 


 


Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be informed about 
the process used by management in forming particularly 
sensitive accounting estimates and about the basis for the 
auditor's conclusions regarding the reasonableness of 
those estimates. 


• The following items are the most significant area 
encountered during our audit which involved substantial 
levels of management judgment or application of 
accounting estimates. These estimates are sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may ultimately differ from management's current 
judgment: 
- Valuation of marketable securities as of June 30, 2021 


and 2020. 
- Accounts receivable allowance as of June 30, 2021 


and 2020. 
- Emergency student loans receivable allowance as of 


June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
- Net book value of property and equipment as of June 


30, 2021 and 2020. 
• During our audit of the Associated Students' financial 


statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, we reviewed 
the estimates made by management and found the basis 
for their conclusions to be reasonable. However, 
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estimates could change and actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 


 


III. Required Communications 
 


Matter to be Communicated Our Response 
 


Disagreements with Management 
 


 


• Disagreements with management, whether or not 
satisfactorily resolved, about matters that could be 
significant to the entity's financial statements or the 
auditor's report should be communicated to those charged 
with governance. 


• No such disagreements occurred. 


 


Consultation with Other Accountants 
 


 


• When the auditor is aware that management has consulted 
with other accountants about significant accounting or 
auditing matters, the auditor's views about the subject of 
the consultation should be communicated to those charged 
with governance. 


• We are not aware of any consultations with other 
independent accountants on any significant accounting or 
auditing matters. 


 


Major Issues Discussed with Management Prior to 
Retention 
 


 


• Any major issues that were discussed with management in 
connection with our annual retention should be 
communicated to those charged with governance. 


• No such issues were encountered. 
 


 


Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 


 


• Serious difficulties encountered in dealing with 
management that relate to the performance of the audit are 
required to be brought to the attention of those charged 
with governance. 


• No such difficulties were encountered. 


 


Deficiencies in Internal Control 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be advised of any 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in the 
design or operation of the internal control structure coming 
to the auditor's attention during the audit. 


• Refer to Section IV. Report to Management for internal 
control observations. 


 


Material Uncertainties Related to Events and Conditions, 
Specifically Going Concern Issues 
 


 


• The auditor should communicate any doubt regarding the 
entity's ability to continue as a going concern, and any 
other material uncertainties. 


 


• No material uncertainties were identified. 
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III. Required Communications 
 


Matter to be Communicated Our Response 
 


Fraud and Illegal Acts 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be adequately 
informed of any fraud or illegal acts noted. 


• During the course of our audit of the financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2021, we did not become 
aware of any fraud or illegal acts. 


• An auditor cannot obtain absolute assurance that material 
misstatements in the financial statements will be detected. 
Because of the characteristic of fraud, particularly those 
involving concealment and falsified documentation 
including forgery, a properly planned audit may not detect 
a material misstatement. Further, the determination of 
whether an act is illegal is usually beyond the auditor's 
professional competence. The auditor's training and 
experience should ordinarily provide a reasonable basis 
for awareness that some client acts coming to their 
attention in the performance of the audit might be illegal. 
The further removed an illegal act is from events and 
transactions specifically reflected in the financial 
statements, the less likely the auditor is to become aware 
of the act or recognize the possible illegality. 


  
 


Independence 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be informed of any 
relationships that in our professional judgment may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 


• To the best of our knowledge, there are no circumstances 
or relationships between the Associated Students and 
Nasif, Hicks, Harris & Co., LLP that would impair our 
independence in reporting on the financial statements. 


• We are independent accountants within the meaning of 
Rule 101 of the Code of Professional Conduct of the 
American Institute of Certified Accountants. 


 


Other Material Written Communications 
 


 


• Those charged with governance should be informed of 
other material written communications between the auditor 
and management. 


• In addition to this report, the following are other material 
written communications between Nasif, Hicks, Harris & 
Co., LLP and the Associated Students during 2021: 
 
- Engagement letter for the audit of the Associated 


Students for the year ended June 30, 2021 dated 
October 20, 2021. 


- Management representation letter dated January 26, 
2022. 


- Independent Auditors' Report for the Audited 
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 
2021 dated January 26, 2022. 
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IV. Report to Management 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Associated Students for the year 
ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered the Associated Students’ internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Associated Students’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Associated Students’ internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
significant deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been 
identified. We did not identify deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the following deficiencies in the Associated Students’ internal control to be 
significant deficiencies: 
 
Emergency Student Loans Receivable 


 
The method management currently uses to account for emergency student loans is not in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We proposed significant 
adjustments related to the emergency student loans in order to report emergency student loans receivable 
under an acceptable method.  


 
Under the current method, management records an expense when loans are issued and revenue when 
payments are received. Emergency student loans issued should be recorded in an emergency student loans 
receivable subledger and posted to an emergency student loans receivable account on the statement of 
financial position. Payments received should reduce the respective students' balances in the subledger and 
the total receivable balance on the statement of financial position. The subledger should be maintained 
and reconciled monthly or quarterly to the receivable balance on the statement of financial position. The 
executive director should review the reconciliation on monthly or quarterly basis.  


 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
 
When Associated Students sends the Emergency Student Loan charges to the student’s BARC account, 
the BARC office takes responsibility for the receivable. Associated Students is reimbursed by the BARC 
office for all the loans provided. This reimbursement will be done on a quarterly basis. 
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IV. Report to Management – continued 
 
Accounts Payable 


 
Management does not utilize the accounts payable function in the organization's accounting system to 
record and report outstanding amounts due to vendors at any given point in time. The accounts payable 
function should be utilized in order to produce accounts payable aging reports for management to 
periodically review and report the accounts payable balance accurately in the financial statements, without 
the need to record a related adjusting journal entry. 


 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 


 
Regular monthly bills for Associated Students are paid monthly when they are received. This is a small 
portion of our payables. Most of the bills that Associated Students pays are for student sponsored events 
and programs. The different Associated Students entities and Office of Student Life student organizations 
are responsible for turning in paperwork to pay bills and reimburse students for expenses they have 
incurred. We will continue to work with our students to process payment requests for their programs and 
use purchase orders for reoccurring charges. Associated Students is a learning environment for students to 
put on programs and events as well as to process payments for them. 
 
One challenge Associated Students faces with amounts owed to the other University Departments is 
getting the invoice in a timely manner. An event that occurs in May or June may not be billed until July or 
August. Management strives to have purchase orders in place for all outstanding amounts so that we can 
see what is potentially owed, but this doesn’t happen 100% of the time. Many of the charges from 
University Departments are billed to individual Associated Students BARC accounts. Each account shows 
the aging of charges and is reviewed by the Accounts Payable staff person.  
 
Associated Students has hired a Director for Internal Operations. This position is responsible for 
evaluating Associated Students processes, internal control, and regulatory compliance. This director will 
continue to look for ways to address all these concerns. 
 
Construction in Progress 


 
Management needs to record the cost of the bike shop that is being constructed. The construction in 
progress should be recorded as the amounts represent both the cost incurred from the construction activity 
and the associated liability of the cross charge expected by the University of California, Santa Barbara, 
without the need to record a related adjusting journal entry. 


 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
 
(NEED TO ADD MANGEMENTS RESPONSE HERE) 


 







 


- 8 - 
 


IV. Report to Management – continued 
 


OTHER MATTERS 
 
Political Activities 


 
Senate must be aware of legal requirements placed upon the Organization as a non-profit, tax-exempt 
organization. The following court cases have addressed these issues: 


 
• Smith v. Regents of the University of California 
• Rosenberger v. the University of Virginia 
• Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System v. Southworth 
 
The Organization could jeopardize its tax-exempt status through: 


 
• Campaigning, even in a limited way, for a particular candidate 
• Substantial lobbying or other efforts to influence legislation 
 
Such tax-exempt status could be violated if the expenditure of funds toward the above stated activities 
were considered substantial or if an appropriate election is not made on a Federal Form 990, if applicable. 
The Executive Director should continue to review plans for any of the Associated Students’ sponsored 
candidate debates or forums to ensure that the programs do not constitute campaigning. 


 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 


 
The Associated Students Finance and Business Committee receives training on the proper use of student 
fees including rules for campaigning and lobbying. The expenditure of student fees is scrutinized through 
our requisition process involving authorized signers, signature approval by our financial officers, and the 
final signature of our Executive Director. The Executive Director, Senior Managers and Advisors will 
continue to advise on, and monitor events sponsored by Associated Students. 
 
Unrelated Business Tax 


 
The Associated Students’ income is generally exempt from Federal income tax. However, Internal 
Revenue Code Section 511 imposes income taxes on unrelated business income. Unrelated business 
income is income generated from activities not related to an organization’s exempt function. Margin loans 
also create unrelated business income. 


 
Most of the Associated Students’ income is arguably exempt from unrelated business tax. For instance, 
income from Publication sales is related to the Associated Students’ exempt function because the notes 
and publications serve students. Arguably, Bike Shop income is also probably exempt because the Bike 
Shop exists primarily for the convenience of students. 
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 


 
The Executive Director and/or their designee, will continue to monitor new contracts and business 
ventures as needed. This will ensure that all new business ventures are created to serve student needs 
thereby remaining exempt from unrelated business income tax. To that same end, student government 
helps to establish and monitor existing and new business ventures through its Office of the Controller  
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IV. Report to Management – continued  
 
(reporting to the Student Senate). This acts as an additional assurance that all business services exist for 
the primary benefit of students. At the current time, Associated Students does not carry any margin loans. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Senate, and others 
within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
 


 
 
 


Nasif, Hicks, Harris & Co., LLP 
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Associated Students DATE: 1/31 

[bookmark: _30j0zll]ZOOM recurring link: https://ucsb.zoom.us/j/9518705947

[bookmark: _xvejfalxc6oq]

Stankiewicz: We are not reaching quorum so we will be doing recommendations. 



A. MEETING BUSINESS

RECOMMENDATION: Call To order at: 4:05 PM

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Xia

Motion Language: motion to __

ACTION: passed at 4:05 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



A-2. Attendance, pronouns, & Ice Breaker (including non-members): 

		Name

		Note:

Absent (excused/not excused)

Arrived late (time)

Departed early (time)

Proxy (full name)



		Hailey Stankiewicz

Chair

		Present (she/her)



		Brieonni Johnson

Vice-chair

		Absent



		Adam Majcher

CFO

		Present (he/him)



		Cassandra Chow

Senator

		Absent



		Ethan Engler

Senator

		Present (arrived late)



		Nicole Bongard 

Senator

		Present (She/Her)



		Avital Rutenburg

Senator

		Present (She/Her)





		Noah Weiss

Senator

		Present (He/Him)



		Anna Xia

Finance Officer

		Present (She/Her)



		Dylan Shapiro

Finance Officer

		Present (arrived late)



		Jonathan Puentes

Finance Officer

		Present (He/Him)



		Cody Jiang

Finance Officer

		Absent



		Jasmin Hirth

Finance Officer

		Excused







Land Acknowledgment

We ask you to join us in acknowledging the Chumash Peoples, their Elders, both past and present, as well as their future generations. 



We would like to take this opportunity for us all to reflect on how the work we do here today, in our search for knowledge, our opportunities to teach, and every day, in our chosen fields, affects these lands and the peoples of these lands that we work with and research to protect.



We acknowledge that this University system was founded upon exclusions and erasures of many Indigenous peoples, including those on whose lands this institution is located, the villages and unceded lands of the Chumash people.  This UCSB Administration has failed to faithfully and dutifully support the traditional custodians of these lands, Chumash people and Indigenous students, through their continued support of Mauna Kea.



As we work together to prevent further damage to these lands and waters that support not only our livelihoods, recreation, lifestyles, research, and education, we remember that the Chumash peoples of this area have been separated from these lands, unable to maintain livelihoods as they should, unable to recreate traditionally, unable to maintain their traditional lifeways freely, and unable to have the same access to their lands that we are provided, to do their own traditional research and educate their future generations.



The Chumash people are comprised of the descendants of Indigenous peoples removed from their Island of origin Limuw (Santa Cruz), Anyapac (Anacapa), Wima (Santa Rosa) and Tuqan (San Miguel), subjugated by 5 missions during Spanish colonization of the Central Coast, from Malibu to Morro Bay and inland to Bakersfield. The Villages, upon which this University sits, were a safe haven for maritime travelers. A place alive with trading, hospitality, and abundance. A place where knowledge of and from the surrounding areas, far and wide, was shared with all people of this place and its many visitors. A traditional place of sharing knowledge and education. A tradition this University has an obligation to remember.



Many of the projects and research conducted by this University are within the traditional territory of the Chumash Peoples, and/or affect other Indigenous peoples in their territories and in spite of all of this, each Tribe, Council, Clan, and Band is working diligently to restore and continue their traditional stewardship practices on these lands and heal from this historical trauma.



The damage that has been done and continues to be done by not sharing the true history and legacy in this place and others, and by the exploitation of the Natural Cultural Resources of these areas, can never be erased, there is no mitigation or research project that can make their communities whole again. But we can do better!



As educators, friends, and allies, together, we can acknowledge the mistakes and atrocities of the past and move forward in remembrance and relationship with the local Chumash peoples and other Indigenous peoples, to facilitate their process of healing by making sure that our processes here make room for their Chumash and Indigenous voices to be heard, their Traditional Ecological Knowledge of these territories to be listened to and their peoples to be a part of the healing of these lands and waters, as well as themselves.



This acknowledgment, though brief and in no way complete, demonstrates a commitment by this institution and their educators, to begin the process of creating a relationship with the local Chumash and Indigenous Communities and work to dismantle the ongoing legacies of settler colonialism.



We come together today to acknowledge, stand up for, and give voice to, the unceded lands and waters of the Chumash and all their peoples.



A-3. Acceptance of Excused Absences and proxies

· Senator Engler for today's meeting

· Financial Officer Shapiro for today's meeting

· Financial Officer Hirth for today's meeting

· Financial Officer Jiang



Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Weiss

Motion Language: motion to bundle ad approve all excused absences

ACTION: passed at 4:13 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



B. PUBLIC FORUM (2 minutes each unless requested otherwise)

1. UCSB Triathlon Club

Stankiewicz: Is there a representative from this organization here today? Looks like they are not here.



2. SB Hacks

a. Benjamin Darnell, SB Hacks representative

*Screen shared Exhibit A*

Darnell: Just for some context, I gave a presentation last quarter to request funding for an in-person event. Because of COVID restrictions, that has been moved to a virtual event. Currently we are hosting on February 4th-6th, this coming Friday. We are going to be using Hopin and Discord as our digital venue. I submitted a request to modify our already allocated budget to switch some categories around to accurately reflect that we are now a virtual event rather than an in-person event. Here is just some background on SB Hacks. I can go over that briefly for those of you who weren’t here. We are a 36-hour long hack-a-thon all student hosted at UCSB. We cater to all students, all UCSB and non UCSB students. Student hackers are required to apply but we try to accept students from diverse backgrounds and interests so that everyone who wants to participate can. Especially now that we are a virtual event, we are able to accept any six applicants that complete our application successfully. We should be expecting around 400 students attending. Just more specifics about our funding request. So the two categories that we are interested in switching our funding for are the digital venue fees. That’s going to be Hopin and Discord, primarily Hopin which charges $99 for an event of our tier plus $1 per attendee. Estimated cost is amount $449 but it may be a little more or a little less, so I estimated on the slightly higher side based on how many people we have accepted so far. Just for context, we did receive funding for the same category last year. I don’t remember exactly how much but it was a similar amount. The second category is t-shirts, stickers, and giveaways to hackers. These are things that all participants receive when they attend our event. We will be giving these things to hackers who have registered and attended our event. We will be able to see and keep track and make sure no one receives these items without actually having attended. For the second category, I’m not entirely sure if this is allowed by Associated Students rules, so if it turns out that it’s not allowed, we are just interested in the first category. We currently display the AS logo on t-shirts, website, and signage and we will continue to do so given that you are funding us. 

Majcher: Thanks a lot for coming. What’s the content in the t-shirts and on the stickers?

Darnell: So, we don’t have a completed design right now that’s going to be sent to hackers after the event is completed. What we normally have, I can just turn on my video because I just happen to have the shirt on right now, essentially on the front we have just some SB Hacks signage and on the back there’s a bunch of company logos and corporate sponsors. Associated Students will be on there as well. 

Majcher: Just a note, for t-shirts we can’t fund them unless they have a social awareness message. Also, for t-shirts, they have to be sweatshop free and there are a couple other requirements for them. For stickers, there’s also a couple requirements but I can’t find them right now. 

Darnell: Would you be able to elaborate on what exactly constitutes a social awareness message and if there’s some contact I could talk to after this to get more details on exactly counts and what we need to do to fulfill that requirement? 

Majcher: It’s kind of a broad definition, what I remember from past years is as long as it’s not just the logo of SB Hack-a-thon. That wouldn’t constitute a social awareness message. It’s hard to give examples.

Stankiewicz: An example could be, last quarter there was an organization on campus that was meant to promote certain holidays and events in a certain ethnic culture so they formed it in a way that was a social awareness message because it told people about their identity and why it is important. Are you using the t-shirts, stickers, and such as a giveaway? 

Darnell: Yes.

Stankiewicz: So if you do that, you will need to utilize a one-time exception to break financial policy and procedure to do that. Would you be comfortable with that?

Darnell: Yes. This is our only request for the year.

Stankiewicz: Kelsey, my advisor, just sent the information on what constitutes a social awareness campaign so I will read that to you right now. “Defined as an event that brings knowledge of, understanding of our recognition of to an issue directly related to the organization. All t-shirt requests must ensure that the t-shirts are made,” like head financial officer Majcher said, “sweat shop free in order to receive funding.” 

Darnell: We don’t have a finalized design as I said, so it might be a little hard to give you exactly what we have now. I think it would be possible to fit with our theme and message to fit something with social awareness on our t-shirts, but I would like to confirm that with you guys as well. Would it be possible to delay that category, switch that category to a future date when we have a t-shirt design?

Stankiewicz: Yeah, definitely, we can also, it’ll be up to the committee, we could add a stipulation to fund the t-shirts as long as they do have a social awareness campaign on there. We can always delay that for a future meeting as well. 

Darnell: I think the stipulation will work as well and we can be in contact after. 



3. Writers Room

a. Presented by Michael Tran, Writers Room’s president

*Screen shared Exhibit B*

Tran: I am Michael Tran the president of writer’s room which is the screen writing club that we have at UCSB. Every year we have a three-day screen writing conference called Word Farm where we invite a bunch of industry guests, up to 16, to come to UCSB and speak to students about screenwriting, producing, directing, show running, everything that students will to know how to navigate through the industry. Last year we had it over Zoom so that’s why we didn’t request any money. This year we will have a mixture of Zoom and in-person workshops. Essentially this is what we are going to be asking for: $1,500 for lunch for the 35 people which includes the 32 students we have on average every singles year at UCSB plus two or three guests who stay for lunch. T-shirts for all the students and guests, about 50 so $750 total. Breakfast, coffee, snacks, supplies for students. We get here and gather pretty early in the morning and stay for hours on end. Parking for our guests which is for a few hours about $8 per car. A stipend for the guests which is about $300 leading to $3,200 which makes our total $6,428. That is all I have. 

Weiss: Hi Michael, I was wondering, who were some of your previous guest speakers?

Tran: Last year we had Scott Frank over Zoom and we will hopefully have him this year. Scott Frank directed Queens Gambit, won the Emmy for that, wrote Logan, the Wolverine. A few years ago, almost a decade ago, we had Stan Raimi, I don’t think I need to explain who that is. Noah Harpster, screen writer for Maleficent, Mistress of Evil, A Beautiful Day in the Neighborhood. David Mandell, who was the showrunner and creator of Veep. A bunch of our guests are alumni, but we have quite a few guests who are not alumni. The guests who are alumni like to come back and do the in-person events. This year we have confirmed Joe Medjuck who produced Space Jam he will be doing an in-person event.  He did Space Jam and a bunch of other Ivan Reitman films. We have about 10 of our 16 guests confirmed so far. 

Weiss: That’s very impressive and cool. One last question, since they are alumni, why are you paying them?

Tran: This is something that we do like to offer our guest speakers. They are alum but they do live in LA and they have to commute all the way to Santa Barbara. Some of them like to stay the night, that’s a lot of gas, if they need housing for the night or there’s a later workshop, we like to provide them with the stipend. It’s also for their time more than anything. They are doing 2-3 hour workshops per person. 

Weiss: Thank you, I look forward to hearing more about your event. 

Stankiewicz: I have a few logistical question/clarification type things. The $1,500 for the lunch, with also the line item for breakfast, coffee, and snacks would go into this too. Actually, quickly can you elaborate on what you meant for supplies under the line item for breakfast, coffee, and snacks? 

Tran: Such as cups, plates, utensils. 

Stankiewicz: The money that will go towards breakfast, coffee, and snacks, as well as the money that will go towards lunch for 35 people, you will need to have vegan and vegetarian options available for people since your event will have 30+ people. Are you planning on having that?

Tran: One hundred percent.

Stankiewicz: The other thing, we have a limit for food expenditures, $750, unless you would like to use your one-time exception to break financial policy to ask for more money, which would be your one-time exception for the year. 

Tran: This is the only time we ask for funding throughout the entire year. 

Stankiewicz: There are a couple more things. For the cups and things like that that constitute supplies, make sure to get those from the Zero Waste Committee website. For the speaker stipends, Kelsey I guess this is more of a question for you, because they are paying them to speak and hold workshops, they would need the W-9 and independent contractor forms and things like that, correct?

Thibdeau: Yeah. 

Stankiewicz: When you have a speaker and things like that, for organizations, you need to have the W-9 and independent contract form two weeks prior to the event. When is your event again?

Tran: February 18th- February 20th. 

Stankiewicz: You need to have that done by February 4th. That would be the last time you can turn in those required documents to be sure that we can pay those speakers/entertainers. 

Stankiewicz: Last one, this is repetitive with the last group, but does your t-shirt have a social awareness message on there and are they made sweatshop free?

Tran: Unfortunately, they don’t necessarily have a social awareness message on them.

Stankiewicz: Then I don’t think that we would be able to fund that. 

Tran: The W-9, is that something that I have to look for on my own or is that something that is on your website?

Thibdeau: It’s the standard W-9 that the IRS uses. You can find it online. The contract you might, I don’t know if you have an advisor or somebody that you would be able to reach out to?

Tran: We do have an advisor. It’s the undergraduate advisor.

Thibdeau: Did you already ask about the parking, Hailey?

Stankiewicz: No, I didn’t ask about that. I think they said that the event was at UCSB.

Thibdeau: My question is, how do you plan to pay for the parking, exactly?

Tran: I think we can front that. 

Thibdeau: What I would do, if we approve funding for the parking, you should reach out to TPS. Usually when you are having an event you can ask them for parking passes. They’ll charge whatever rate they charge, and they can bill that directly to AS. We can pay it from what we granted to you. The only thing I’m not sure of is if you’ve already checked with them. I don’t know if your figure here is accurate of what they are actually going to charge. 

Tran: I’ll check with them. 

Weiss: One last question for you, have you considered reaching out to possible alumni organizations? I feel like this is something that they would easily jump on.

Tran: Yeah, so this is an event that has been going on for over 10 years now. This has, I think, always been funded through UCSB. Alumni are really busy funding all other parts of the film department. What we do have, at the very least, is one of our donors does donate about $1,200 for one dinner for one night. That’s not included in this.

Majcher: I have two more things. One is I sent you the link to the Zero Waste Committee which is where you would have to get the compostable supplies for the cups, plates, and stuff. That has all the prices on it. The second thing, on your budget request, you put that the total was $6,428 but in your budget request it was $6,028 and I added up all your items and it was $6,028. Just to make sure, is the amount you are requesting the $6,028 or the $6,428?

Tran: I think I might have mis clicked or done my math wrong, either here or there. I’m going to do some quick calculations. 

Majcher: You’re good. I just wanted to double check. 

Tran: I’m asking for the $6,028. 



4. Poets Club

a. Presented by Julieta Corral Phun, Poets Club’s representative

Phun: Hi. We are Poets Club and we are asking for money today for our quarterly poetry showcase. We call it Dope Metaphors everyone goes and supports the stuff that we have been working on throughout the quarter. We are hoping this one is a little bit of a bigger event since it is in person. We are asking for money for The Hub which breaks down into electrical, the sound equipment, hiring somebody, renting out the space, and the chairs. That’s the $116. We are asking for $100 for our videographer and $100 for our photographer and editing. Those we post onto our Poets Club YouTube. We get the performance agreement and W-9 from them. The last thing we are asking for are t-shirts for the event. That one is going to be about $660. It is through Custom Ink which we have been able to order from before and is sweatshop free. Our message on it is going to be something like, “We want to hear what you have to say,” because a lot of our poets are really nervous and struggle a lot with social anxiety and stuff like that. We want to make sure they build up that confidence and go home with something that says, “Hey, you did a really great job. Your voice deserves to be heard.” So that’s it. The total comes out to $1,426 and the event is on March 5th.

Stankiewicz: Before I open the floor to more questions, I see on FLUXX where you submitted your funding request the total amount requested was $1,176. How much did you say the amount was now?

Phun: $1,426.

Stankiewicz: Where is that extra amount going towards?

Thibdeau: They have two funding requests in FLUXX. It looks like one of them was submitted first and does not include the photographer. This was 2037.

Stankiewicz: I see that now, sorry that was my bad. Thank you for clarifying that. 

Stankiewicz: If you have a videographer or anything, which you said would include the photos and filming, make sure you have the W-9 and performance contract paperwork filled out two weeks prior to the event. 

	Phun: Okay, perfect. 



5. Laughology

Stankiewicz: Is there a representative from the organization here today? Okay, I don’t see one let’s move on to the next speaker in public forum. 



6. Table Tennis Club

Stankiewicz: Is there a representative from the organization here today from this organization? Okay, we can move on to the next speaker in public forum. 



7. Taiwanese student association

Stankiewicz: Is there a representative here from this organization? Okay, we can move on to the next speaker in public forum. 



8. Human Rights Board 

a. Presented by Jordan “Kim” Cooper, Human Rights Board officer

*Screen shared Exhibit C*

Cooper: Hi everyone, so our annual Human Rights Week is coming up. Usually, our Human Rights week is in person, and we have a lot of events outside or indoors and its free to students, because of how things are going with COVID we decided to make it semi hybrid. Because of this, just like last year when our Human Rights Week was online, we did giveaways. We are hoping to see the rules, limitations, and one-time exceptions for giveaways. Last year we were approved so this is mostly to ask questions about it. As you can see on the spread sheet, for our photography event, we have an itemized budget, this would be in collaboration with MAPAS, that would come out to $605. For our movie screening, our subcommittee Students for Reproductive Justice, we’d also be having “prizes” but it’s not actually prizes because no one would be competing for them, all of this would be through raffle as long as you are at the event or watch the movie you are up for the giveaway. I believe these went through FLUXX to get approved. Mostly our question is what the limitations are for the one-time exception.

Stankiewicz: Yeah, so for the one-time exception that mostly applies to registered campus organizations so BCU’s have to get a 2/3 vote, but they usually do not have a one-time exception to break financial policy. Is that right, Kelsey?

Thibdeau: Yeah, you do need permission basically from F&B to use your money in this way.

Stankiewicz: The only difference would be is that you need a 2/3 vote from the committee rather than a regular passing vote. Other than that, you aren’t limited to another exception after this. Say you are requesting a budget approval for $4,000 of food, that would typically be a one-time exception for food, you don’t have that limitation since you are a BCU. 

Cooper: Perfect. Well then, I suppose I am here for approval to use our funds for this. It would all be coming out of the special projects line items for us which we have money to use it for. We also had a question if AS has any type of professional grade cameras for us to borrow for the photography event but that’s also something I can just email to someone about. 

Thibdeau: I would reach out to the media center because I do believe they have some. I just don’t know their exact procedure for lending them out. 

Finch: They are open today If you want to go and check them out they are open to students today. 

Cooper: Thank you.

Stankiewicz: I just had a really quick, clarifying question unless I am missing something on FLUXX again which I might be doing. On FLUXX your total amount requested is to approve $742 out of special projects to use at these events but on the spreadsheet, it shows $850. Is it the $850?

Cooper: It’s the $850 because we are expecting taxes to rake up a lot specifically because a lot of these will be being shipped, which doesn’t really allow us to add it on FLUXX. 



9. Black Women’s Health Collaborative

a. Presented by Samhal Asfaw, Black Women’s Health Collaborative’s representative

*Screen shared Exhibit D*

Asfaw: Similar to the previous person from Human Rights Board, we are asking for permission. Basically, SASA and Black Women’s Health Collaborative are hosting a restorative justice event. That being said, we thought it would be a really great idea to provide books for all the individual people attending. We have a google form to get a headcount for those attending and who are interested. They can clarify if they prefer a physical copy of the book, which we can have there at the event, or let’s say an individual cannot be present because this event is through Zoom, they can have an eBook copy so its going to be available for all students regardless of location. That being said, the reason it says split cost on the very last item is because we are splitting the cost between Black Women’s Health Collaborative and SASA. We just want to get permission for the sense that we can use our budget to provide a resource in collaboration of this event. 



10. Reel Loud Film and Arts Festival 

a. Presented by Hollie Collins, Reel Loud Film and Arts Festival producer

*Screen shared Exhibit E*

Collins: Hi, my name is Hollie Collins, I am this year’s producer for the Reel Loud Film and Arts Festival through the Film and Media Department. What is Reel Loud? Reel Loud prides itself as a celebration of the arts and a platform for young artists. It gives a chance for students and alumni of any and all art mediums to exhibit their work in a public space to be viewed by friends, family, and industry professionals. Reel Loud has been a tradition within the FAMST department for over 30 years, this’ll be the 31s festival. This year’s theme is “Weird and Wonderful”. We were inspired by art pieces we had come across by Dr. Seuss. We feel the theme encompasses much of what art can be, and the ambiguity of the name has sparked a lot of creativity on our end, so we hope it will also inspire those who want to submit. Our plan for this year, in light of COVID-19, this will be the first campus-based Reel Loud Festival since 2019. So far we have been given the go ahead from UCSB to plan for Campbell Hall as our location. Despite the omicron outbreak, we have still been able to move along in terms of preparation. COVID-19 safety. As UCSB prepares for a return to campus, we are currently waiting on updates from Campbell Hall administrators in terms of what Covid safety guidelines may look like in the spring. For now, we plan on requiring masks at the event, as well as encouraging interested parties in staying up to date on Covid vaccinations. In the event that new Covid variants make it unsafe to attend an indoor festival, we have plans to rework the festival at the Westwind Drive-in in Goleta. This was last year’s location. They had a drive-in with about 200 cars. In the event we are in Campbell Hall, which we are planning for, the event will be for about 700-800 people. Publicizing. Reel Loud is typically publicized largely through Facebook and Instagram. Posters are redesigned yearly for campus advertising and theme-inspired video/picture content is created specifically for social media. We also do weekly tabling during spring quarter. Here is our budget breakdown. This year we will be requesting $27,000. The main components are our operational costs which is going to be about $20,245. The performance costs is something we don’t always have an exact number for until early spring. The expected range is between $6,000 to $8,000. We are looking at getting grants by reaching out to CAB, HFA, After Dark, and IV Arts. In terms of grants,aAny student who wants to submit to REEL LOUD will be able to access grants (as long as money lasts) in order to submit a film/art piece. In order for the festival truly equitable to marginalized students, we want to make resources as accessible as we can. Based on past submission numbers, the max amount we would need if everyone applies to get reimbursed/funded would be $18,800. We don’t actually expect to reach this number which is why we kind of start with a lower amount in requests. If our grant requests prove successful this quarter, then we may find other orgs to reach out to during the spring. I believe that is all I have for now, thank you.

Stankiewicz: Just to clarify, your performance costs, you are estimating between $6,000 and $8,000? So you’re requesting the $8,00 or $6,000 or somewhere in-between that. 

Collins: When we submitted, we requested the $6,000 so we will probably just with the 

$6,000.

Stankiewicz: Okay, that would bring the total to $25,000 instead of $27,000, would that be okay?

Collins: Yeah.

Majcher: Can you go over a little more in-depth about what goes into the operational costs and performance costs?

Collins: Yeah, I have the funding right here. 

*Screen shared Exhibit F*

Collins: So you can see our budget breakdown. A large part of the cost is actually just the fees that come with reserving Campbell Hall, so paying their staff, and operational costs that come with lighting or sound set up, all of those things. That’s where a big chunk of money usually goes towards. Pretty much the way Reel Loud works is the films submitted are silent films and we use performances and music to enhance them. That is where the performances come in which is down here. We are hoping to stay closer to $6,000 this year. In past years it has been more expensive, but my plan is to reach out to a lot of bands and musical artists in IV that people are already familiar with to not only keep the cost down, because as you can see, we have lodging, flight, transportation, things like that, I’d like to keep that cost down so that’s what we’re working on right now. You can also see we have trailer production supplies and art supplies which goes into our marketing and publicity. 

Majcher: Would you be able to share this with us in the chat?

Collins: Yeah, I can share the link right now. 

Thibdeau: You should have it in FLUXX everyone, it is one of the attachments in the funding request. 

Stankiewicz: I have a quick clarifying question. I was calculating all the line items, so it’s the $20,245 plus $6,000 which should be $26,245. There’s a $3,000 in grants. Are you asking $3,000 from us for grants or are you getting $3,000 from someone else for grants?

Collins: Oh, sorry. Yes, we are requesting $3,000 for grants from someone else. That is the organization we are trying to reach out to to get the other grant funds. 

Stankiewicz: So, your total would be $26,245 minus the $3,000 for a total of $23,245?

Collins: Yeah.

Majcher: I know in past years, some of the supplies, especially the art supplies, there was a bit of trouble funding that because it was deemed as equipment. I guess this is a question for Kelsey, for all the art supplies from the paint to the power tool, I guess that’s okay because it’s a rental, for stuff like acrylic panels and the projector, are we able to fund that? 

Thibdeau: We have not in the past because of that issue. It comes down to you all in the end. 

Majcher: For the catering, I assume there is going to be more than 30 people at this event?

	Collins: Right.

Majcher: In that case, do you have vegan and vegetarian options available?

Collins: Traditionally, last year we had a couple food trucks that had vegetarian options. 

Majcher: For the equipment rentals, like the stuff for SPARK equipment, where will you be storing those in-between days? Oh, is it for only one day?

Collins: The SPARK equipment is only for one day. 

Majcher: Last question, for the trailer production supplies, are those rentals?

Collins: Yeah, so those are typically rentals. Pretty much what happens is there are things we can rent from the film department itself, but not all of their stuff is completely up to date. They also usually can’t provide all of it, so these are just additional things that we would rent daily or by weekend. 

Majcher: For the three weekends and five days, would you be storing it yourself for that time period?

Collins: Yes, we would be storing it with the film department in their sound stage. The department has a sound stage where they store their own equipment.

Majcher: Could you go over how the grants work?

Collins: The way the grants work is we will reach out to as many orgs as we can to see if they are willing to donate. Based off of the amount that we are able to obtain, we can offer to any students who don’t have the resources to do the project they want, we can offer them a certain amount based off of what they are doing. We tend to have a cap depending on how much we get in a certain year. 

Majcher: Would that be going to equipment rentals then?

Collins: Right. So, it can go towards equipment rentals, supplies they may need, it can vary, but it also depends on the project and what we are allowed to give them the grants for. 

Stankiewicz: I had a question kind of going off of what Adam’s question, so because you are considering the $3,000 you’ll get for grants making it a total of $23,245 you are requesting, would you like us to take out $3,000 from your operational costs so the grants can cover what we cannot cover? Like the paint supplies and stuff like that?

Collins: Yeah, that would be totally fine. 

Stankiewicz: With that, because it was $3,100 for your paint supplies, there will still be $100 worth of paint supplies we wouldn’t be able to cover just going into when we deliberate. 

Majcher: I forgot to ask one thing. For the instructional development media rentals, will you have to store those anywhere?

 Collins: No, we won’t have to store those. Those will be given back the same day.

Stankiewicz: Did someone ask already, because the cost is over $750, if you would be okay using your one-time exception?

	Collins: We would be comfortable to use our one-time exception for that. 



11. UCSB Dhadkan

a. Presented by Anika Arora (Finance Executive), Gautam Mundewadi (Co-President), of UCSB Dhadkan

Arora: Hello everybody, my name is Anika and I am one of the finance executives for UCSB Dhadkan. 

Mundewadi: Hello everyone, my name is Gautam and I am one of the co-presidents of UCSB Dhadkan.

Arora: Dhadkan is a 501c3 organization which means all proceeds of the show and post-show concert go to charity. In previous years, our show has brought together over 1,000 people in the Santa Barbara area and UCSB campus to give minorities in the area a chance to share their culture through the arts and teach people about Indian culture. Over the past seven years, we have donated thousands of dollars to various Indian charities. In 2019, we donated $12,000 to Action for Education. This year UCSB Dhadkan has partnered with Maitri. Maitri is a non-profit organization that empowers Southeast Asian survivors of domestic violence, to lead lives of self-sufficiency and dignity through holistic programs. Maitri enables healthy relationships and gender equity through community engagement, education, and advocacy. 

Mundewadi: Something I wanted to add, Divani is a Bollywood fusion dance competition that is being held at the Arlington this year. Dhadkan gets to help Maitri and each year Dhadkan partners with a different charity and we donate all the proceeds of the show to them. In order to make our even successful, we are requesting $8,400 from AS. This money will be used towards the judging service fee, the hospitality of the judges, videography, lighting, and sound for the event. In addition we are in the process of asking other organizations on campus to fund our event such as RHA, SCORE, and CAB. Ultimately our goal is to support Maitri’s platform and to support those who suffer from domestic violence. 

Weiss: I’m excited to hear about this event. Have you consulted with the people at the theater on the cost of the technical help that you need? Do you have invoices?

Mundewadi: We do have invoices and breakdowns of the cost for the lighting. The lighting is not going to be directly from the Arlington theater, because the lighting system there is not as robust as we need for a dance competition. They only have dimmers. We have breakdown of the costs for lighting, videographer, and for our event.

Arora: I’ll upload those on the FLUXX as soon as I can. 

Thibdeau: I have a question for you all. We’ve already granted you all $5,354 for this event, this is the same event, right?

Arora: Yes, this is the same event. 

Thibdeau: This is an additional request of $8,400. I’m just a little confused, some of the line items seem to be similar. For example, videographer for this one and video rate in the last request which we funded. 

Mundewadi: I can talk more about that. The Arlington has a tie with a union. If you bring any camera or video tech crew into the Arlington, the union fee you pay goes up by 40%. Let’s say we paid the venue $100, if we brought in any videography group, we would have to pay them $140. The video fee that we applied for last quarter was that 40% extra addition on the union cost. The videographer is our own videographer that we are bringing ourselves.

Thibdeau: So stage cost and stage crew versus lighting and sound, so you are bringing in specialized lighting and sound? 

Mundewadi: Yes. 

Thibdeau: I’m just curious if you guys have looked into any other venues, even on campus, to hold your event. Like Campbell Hall, is that not an appropriate venue? It seems like they are charging you a lot.

Arora: Our event is actually very big. I think we’d be risking not being able to fit everyone in Campbell Hall. For a dance competition, some of the stage items that we need are not suitable for Campbell Hall or other on campus locations. We looked at other venues in downtown, but Arlington was the most affordable and had the best stage for us. 

Mundewadi: One of the things about the Arlington that we liked is that they have a whole backstage area where we will be able to have rooms for each of the dance teams to get ready in. Also, the deposit for the Arlington is something that was made before either of us were-

Arora: I think we made it in 2020 when we were supposed to have an in person show that got cancelled because of COVID. We had that deposit already submitted and it was able to be rolled over to this year’s event. 

Thibdeau: You said that you were contracting light and sound with somebody?

Mundewadi: Yes, correct. 

Thibdeau: I imagine that is something you are going to need to provide contracts for if they are not being provided by the venue. 

Mundewadi: Yes, we have the contract at the bottom of the quote. 

Thibdeau: What is the judging service fee?

Mundewadi: Because the judges are spending the entire day at the event, it’s a way for us to pay them back for their time. 

Finch: They will need a contract and a W-9 for that.

Arora: Yes, of course. We will get that going. 



12. CODE

a. Presented by Marvia, CODE’s co-chair

*Screen shared Exhibit G*

Marvia: We are here to request money for our honoraria because our current honoraria budget is $3,000 and we have never had a full board before but now we do. With all of this together it exceeds $3,000. Right here I have calculated how much we have spent with fall honoraria. Three of our officers didn’t apply for retroactive honoraria because these were the ones that came in 1/3 of the way when there was only 1/3 of the quarter left. Total we have used $1,350 for that plus the people who have to apply for retroactive honoraria and summer honoraria it’ll come out to $1,125. Subtracting that from our $3,000 we will only have $525 left. We would like to pay our commissioners their full amount for winter and spring. We will need $5,400 for that. Total we are requesting $4,875 to be added to our honoraria budget. To give some context for the work we have been doing, over the summer Sophia, Jay, and I have been working on creating our website which before had not been updated to what it is now. We had to write and publish over 20 web pages, facilitated an AS training, and we were told we would get a stipend for that but we haven’t heard back from them. I’m thinking it could be added to the honoraria for that. Since it was over the summer and we hadn’t been meeting with other commissions as much, even though Sophia and I were co-chairs, we would be requesting $300 for that. We did all this work on the website knowing we wouldn’t have time to do it during the school year. 

Stankiewicz: Just to clarify, the amount you are requesting is $4,875 total to add to your honoraria? Kelsey, would this come out of senate unallocated or something else?

Thibdeau: I am not 100% sure. 

Finch: I don’t know either. We can ask and get back to you.

Thibdeau: Usually we have just been doing reallocations from special projects to their honoraria. 

Majcher: Do you know for your organization how much of your budget you have used this year? Or if you will have roll over for next year?

Marvia: I’m not sure if we will have roll over. We might when it comes to operating and printing. Our special projects budget is $1,500 which doesn’t cover the cost of honoraria. Also, we are collaborating with the Black Women’s Health Collaborative. They will be doing most of the contracting work, but we are also hoping to be able to fund that because there are things about disability justice. We thought it would be best to avoid taking from our special projects budget. Also, I got an allocations budget and it only included five of our honoraria’s. That’s why this would be retroactive. 



13. AG Office

a. Presented by Tyler Barth, AS Attorney General

Barth: Hi everybody, great meeting, my name is Tyler Barth and I am the Attorney General this year. This is my third year holding this position. I am required to attend F&B meetings per legal code. I also just like to sit in on them to keep up on what is going on in other sides of AS. My office hours, just to share those with you all, are Monday’s and Wednesday’s from 12:30PM to 2:30 PM. You can contact me at attorneygerneral@as.ucsb.edu. During the times that I mentioned previously, that’s when I’ll be at my computer and I’ll be quick to respond to your emails, it’s the best time to get in contact with me. The main reason I came today, however, is to just be transparent and share a project my office has been working on for about a quarter now (we started in the fall). It is working to translate the brown act and see if it provides a normative framework for AS at UCSB. We are currently working on a piece of legislation. I wanted to offer/give a chance to all members of Finance & Business and opportunity to ask questions and provide suggestions for this before we present it to senate. The existence of the Brown Act, for those of you who don’t know, provides a good guidance that I think we should strive to replicate in AS. The Brown Act is, “The intent of the Brown Act is to guarantee the public’s right to attend and participate in meetings held by the local legislative bodies.” With that being said, this is the contour of the Brown Act. You can definitely make this applicable to the legislative branch with our student government. Also, just to preface this, this is not on behalf of any case or matter that has happened previously, we are just trying to be proactive and forward thinking and get this into law as soon as possible just to ensure the public has the right to attend any meetings held through the legislative branch. That would, of course, include Finance & Business, Senate, Internal and External, and any other BCU meetings that are held on this side of the student government. The idea is, we are going to modify part of the power of the legislative branch in the bylaws. We don’t have the exact wording yet but we are thinking of doing something along the lines of, “Any and all publicly noticed meetings will give ample reason for cancellation and provide opportunity for the public to participate in advance.” We want to make sure this is mostly for the public, giving them opportunity to speak at meetings without cancelling the meetings for no reason or just not having the meetings. There should be a reason for all of these meetings to be held. In legal code there isn’t currently anything that is explicitly written out stating that so that’s kind of the idea behind writing this. I wanted to give everyone on the committee, as well as the advisors, the opportunity to ask questions of me as a representative of my office. We are intending to submit this to senate probably two weeks from now if I had to put a time stamp on it. 

Stankiewicz: I don’t think there are any. I just wanted to say thank you for being proactive with that piece of legislation you’d like to write. Again, anyone on the committee they put their email in the chat and going to office hours would be a really great thing so we could hear more of the legislation.



Majcher: I reserve my right. Could I motion to suspend orders of the day and move into discussion items? 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Bongard

Motion Language: motion to suspend orders of the day and move into discussion

ACTION: passed at 5:22 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



*Resumed orders of the day at 5:24 PM*

Thibdeau: I wanted to go ahead and offer if anyone wanted to take a break. Last meeting you all decided to take a five-minute break. Or should we just blow through it?

Stankiewicz: If someone wants to motion for a recess you could do that now if you would like. If not, that’s okay too.

 

C.	REPORTS  

		SEAL Fund Winter Quarter

		[bookmark: _2et92p0]$200,897.94



		Senate Unallocated

		$53,607.67



		SIOP

		$34,224.55



		Culture/ Grads

		$45,000



		Sports Teams

		$21,000



		Academic Teams

		$10,220



		Conference Fund

		$29,750









1. Advisor’s Report 

a.  Thibdeau: I have nothing to report.

b. Finch: Nothing from me, thanks. 

2. Chair’s Report

a. Stankiewicz: I’m going to send an email for your office hours. I would just like to remind everyone to please come on time to F&B meetings because a lot of committee members come at 4:04 PM or 4:03 PM and people on public forum come before you all and the meeting cannot start unless you all are here. Coming at 4 or a little before would be great. I’m going to send an email about that just because it sucks having to wait sometimes. Meeting starts at the same time every week and the Zoom link is always the same so try to come on time when you come to the meetings. 

3. Chief/head Financial Officer’s Report 

a. Majcher: Budget packets are due this week on Wednesday at noon. I’m working on a Google do. I’ll mention it next week meeting just as a reminder to look through this doc for questions to ask at budget hearings. I know when I was doing budget meetings for the first time it was kind of confusing and I had no idea what to ask. They are just questions to ask groups when we deliberate on them. It will just be a Google doc. I made a budget hearings folder with the budget from last year so we can compare the budgets from last year to their requests from this year. Budget hearings are next week. As a reminder those are from 10:00 AM to about 3:00 PM on Thursday and Friday. You are required to come to 40% of them which means you’ll have to come to 4 hours of them out of the 10 hours. You can split it however you want. 



Stankiewicz: Really quick, I forgot to say this, but I remembered after Adam’s update, I’m on the Honoraria Committee in Senate so I will know if you do not come to the budget hearings. If you do not come to the 40%, your honoraria will be reflected in that because it is one of your duties in legal code as a financial officer and a senator, even senators who are not in the F&B committee. Just be sure to come because even though quarter’s honoraria was more lenient, this quarter will not be lenient with it. Again, I’m going to be at all the budget hearings I will know who is going. 



D.	ACCEPTANCE of AGENDA/CHANGES to AGENDA

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Weiss/Engler

Motion Language: motion to approve today’s agenda

ACTION: passed at 5:33 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



E.          ACCEPTANCE of ACTION SUMMARY/MINUTES

· F&B 1/24 meeting minutes

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Rutenburg

Motion Language: motion to approve F&B 1/24 minutes

ACTION: passed at 5:33 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate

	

F.	ACTION ITEMS 
	

F-2. New Business

1. UCSB Triathlon Club - Requesting $4,000 out of sports team

a. Nationals Hotels - $1,000

b. Nationals van rentals - $500

c. Nationals Plane Tickets $1,000

d. Nationals Bike Transportation - $1,000

e. Gas - $500.00

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Rutenburg

Motion Language: motion to table UCSB Triathlon Club’s request for one more week

ACTION: passed at 5:34 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



2. SB Hacks - requesting to move $3474.00 out of their budget to new line items

a. Hopin - $449.00

b. T-Shirts - $3025.00

Majcher: So, this was the group that we were going to pass the t-shirts with the stipulation that they add a social awareness message or we were going tot able it? Would it be possible to pass the Hopin request but table to t-shirt request?

Stankiewicz: Yeah, we can do that. We might have to do two motions for that though, so it will be two different motion items. You could do whichever one you would like first if you would like to do that. Again, just to clarify, the problem with SB Hacks is that the t-shirt didn’t have a social awareness message on it and to approve funding for t-shirts we need to ensure they have a social awareness message on them and they were not sure what their t-shirt design would look like. What Head Financial Officer Majcher was thinking of doing was to approve their funding request for Hopin online platform of $449 and table their t-shirt request for one week hoping that they get more information on what the design will look like.

Majcher: Are we able to table it until the t-shirts are ready or for a specific week?

Stankiewicz: I believe we would have to table it for a specific time.

Thibdeau: You can table indefinitely. That doesn’t mean you can’t bring it back.

Stankiewicz: I feel like it might be a little difficult to table indefinitely because they would have to do a new request for it. If we table it for one week we could just put it in old business and we could go straight into it next week.

Darnell: If I could just add, we probably wouldn’t be able to have the design ready by next week. I would definitely be okay to send another request through FLUXX.

Stankiewicz: Someone could make a motion here if you want. If we only fund the one line item we don’t need to table indefinitely the other. They can just come back when they are ready to request it. 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Puentes

Motion Language: motion to approve SB Hacks request to move $449 out of their budget to new items “Hopin”

ACTION: passed at 5:39 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



3. Writers Room - Requesting $6028 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

a. Lunch for 35 - $1,500

b. 50 T-shirts - $750

c. Breakfast, coffee, snacks supplies - $450

d. Parking for 16 guests - $128

e. Speaker stipends - $3200

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Rutenburg/Bongard

Motion Language: motion to fully fund Writer’s Room $6,028 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

Majcher: I think they said they didn’t have a social awareness message on their t-shirts so we can’t fund them. 

Stankiewicz: You’re right. We could either amend the motion with the stipulation that they have to social awareness message and if they don’t, we just don’t fund it, or we could amend the motion to fund them everything else but the $750 for t-shirts. It’s also up to you, Senator Rutenburg, and the second, Senator Bongard. 

Bongard: Does Senator Rutenburg have to amend the motion? 

Stankiewicz: I believe that they would have to or they can rescind their motion. 

Rutenburg: I can rescind my motion.

Stankiewicz: We are back into discussion before any motions were made.

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Engler

Motion Language: motion to fund Writers Room’s request for $1500 for lunch, $450 for breakfast, coffee, and supplies $128 for parking for 16 guests, and $3,200 for speaker stipends for a total of $5,278 out of SEAL winter quarter fund.

ACTION: passed at 5:47 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Engler

Motion Language: motion to fund Writers Room’s request for $1500 for lunch, $450 for breakfast, coffee, and supplies $128 for parking for 16 guests, and $3,200 for speaker stipends for a total of $5,278 out of SEAL winter quarter fund.

ACTION: passed with a 2/3 vote at 5:54 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



4. Poets Club - requesting $1,426 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

a. T-shirts - $660

b. The Hub - $516

c. photos/filming -$250

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Engler/Bongard

Motion Language: motion to fully fund Poets Club $1,426 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

ACTION: passed at 5:48 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



5. Laughology - requesting $1700 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

a. Headliner 1st and 2nd - $1400

b. Feature 1st and 2nd - $300.00

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Puentes

Motion Language: motion to table Laughology’s request for $1,700 out of SEAL Winter quarter fund for one week

ACTION: passed at 5:49 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



6. Table Tennis Club - requesting $811.66 out of SEAL WINTER quarter fund 

a. Gas - $282.80

b. Hotel - $408.86

c. Registration - $120

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Rutenburg/Weiss

Motion Language: motion to table Table Tennis Club’s request for $811.66 out of SEAL winter quarter fund for one week

ACTION: passed at 5:50 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



7. Taiwanese student association - requesting $30 out of SEAL winter quarter fund

a. Uno Card game - $14

b. Bicycle cards - $16.00

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Bongard

Motion Language: motion to table Taiwanese Student Association’s request for one week

ACTION: passed at 5:51 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



Stankiewicz: I realized, and I did this last week, that we need to go back and do the 2/3 vote for Writer’s room because they asked for a one-time exception for their food. 



8. Human Rights Board - Requesting budget approval of $850 out of special projects

a. GoPro - $350

b. Giftcard (REI) - $100

c. National parks pass - $85

d. Spikeball set - $40

e. Hammock - $30

f. Gift card (shopenby) - $75

g. Menstrual cup - $42

h. Tote bag - $20

i. Taxes and other expenses- $108

Stankiewicz: They are requesting for a giveaway again which breaks financial policy. Because they are a BCU they are not limited to a one-time exception but it still needs a 2/3 vote. 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Majcher

Motion Language: motion to approve Human Rights Board’s budget request of $850 request out of special projects for their new line items.

ACTION: passed with a 2/3 vote at 5:57 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



9. Black Women’s Health Collaborative – requesting approval to use $511.13 out of their budget

a. 25 copies of “Beyond Survival” - $450

b. Shipping - $28

c. Tax - $32.63

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Engler

Motion Language: motion to approve Black Women’s Health Collaborative’s request to use $511.13 out of their budget

ACTION: passed at 5:59 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



10. Reel Loud Film and Arts Festival - requesting $23,245 out of SEAL Spring Quarter fund

a. Operational costs - $17,245

i. Campbell hall labor fees 

b. Performance costs - $6000

Stankiewicz: This one is going to be confusing so please pay attention and motion stuff too. I’m going to pull up their budget breakdown right now. With this, there are certain things in here that we might not be able to fund like the daily advance is kind of like a reservation which we are not able to fund.

Thibdeau: I’m not really sure what exactly this daily advance is. We don’t pay deposits. I don’t think we asked them about it. 

Stankiewicz: I feel like on the safe side we shouldn’t fund it because it looks like a deposit to use Campbell hall.

Majcher: I have the minutes from last year when we funded them for $20,400. I can’t find their budget breakdown from last year. I was wondering if Cindy or Kelsey if ya’ll had the breakdown.

Thibdeau: I do. Last year they didn’t hold it in Campbell because of COVID so they did the drive-in. 

Majcher: Did they have the daily advance category last year?

Thibdeau: No.

Stankiewicz: They said for all the stuff they are only holding it for a day, so it wouldn’t constitute as equipment because they are just renting it. 

Majcher: Other than the trailer production supplies. They said they are storing it in a video room. 

Stankiewicz: Because they are renting these pieces of equipment, they don’t need that 2/3 vote because they are not purchasing it they are renting it?

Thibdeau: Correct.

Stankiewicz: I think the only things we won’t be able to fund them are all the art supplies, but $3,000 of that we are not going to fund them for that because they are going to use the grants. So there would be $100 left that we would have to take out of the budget they are asking for. If we decide to not fund them the daily advances it would be- 

Thibdeau: I can tell you too, I am looking at their funding request for last time they held it in Campbell which was in 2020. The “daily advance” item was in it as well. All we funded them that year was $11,053 for the Campbell Hall fees and equipment rentals. To be fair, that year we had a much smaller amount of money in our SEAL fund. We had to make some tough choices. In total they were requesting $28,600 that year. WE granted $11,000.

Stankiewicz: If we granted them the “daily advance” last year, I think the only thing we wouldn’t be able to fund them this year would be $100 of the art supplies since they would be fine using the $3,000 of grant money towards the art supplies. A part of their operational costs was $20,245 and then they said they would be comfortable using $3,000 of grant money they said they would get to cover their art supplies. The total for request for art supplies was $3,100 so they would have $100 left over that they would be asking us for. We would just need to subtract that from the total to get $23,145 for all line items except for art supplies. I think because they have so many line items it would be okay to say we wanted to fund them $23,145 out of SEAL spring quarter fund for all line items excluding art supplies. 

Majcher: I know last year there was a whole discussion for like 30 minutes to 1 hour, Kelsey or Anjum, do you remember if we ended up funding them for the grants? Was that allowed?

Thibdeau: Now that you’re saying it, I remember it was a big to do. I can tell you what we ended up finding them. It was $20,416. 

Majcher: I have the minutes, but I don’t think last year we knew what line items we were funding. I don’t know if we granted them money for the grants.

Stankiewicz: The grants they aren’t asking for funding. The grants are them asking from other organizations. They just worded it as a grant. 

Majcher: So, they aren’t asking us for the grants?

Stankiewicz: No.  That’s why we are not going to fund them the $3,100 for art supplies. They are going to use the grant money to cover $3,000 of it. That leaves the $100 extra that they asked for that we can’t fund. It would just be $23,145 if we decide to fund them everything except for the art supply line item. 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Engler

Motion Language: motion to fund Reel Loud Film and Arts Festival’s request for $23,145 out of SEAL spring quarter fund for all line items excluding art supplies. 

ACTION: passed at 6:11 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



11. UCSB Dhadkan - requesting $8,400 

a. Judging Service fee - $600

b. Videography - $1,300

c. Lighting - $3,500

d. Sound - $2000

e. Judging hospitality - $1000

Majcher: This is the same event they requested the same event they requested the $6,000 for last time, so this is in addition to that?

Thibdeau: Yeah.

Majcher: Do you know how much we funded them in past years?

Thibdeau: Let me look it up. 

Stankiewicz: I can also see how much we funded them last quarter. For those of you who weren’t able to be at the meeting last quarter due to schedule conflicts or you weren’t in the committee last year, this group had asked for funding for the same event they are asking for now, which is what we are talking about now. 

Thibdeau: Last year it isn’t the same because it was online. We only gave them like $1,000 last year. I went back two years and I see that we gave them $3,375 in one request. They came back and we gave them $928 for the judge’s honoraria. That was it. We already awarded them $5,354 this quarter.

Stankiewicz: They have been awarded funding from alternate sources as well. Some have been approved others are pending. I can show you all that if you would like. 

*Screen shared Exhibit H*

Stankiewicz: This is all that they have requested from, been approved, partially approved, or have pending requests from, for context. The floor is open for discussion.

Thibdeau: I am personally looking at their funding requests that I mentioned before. It just seems like all of their line items are more than it was two years ago. 

Stankiewicz: I am also confused because they didn’t explain to us last time that what we were paying for the videographer and stuff wasn’t the videographer itself but the fee the Arlington Theater made them pay them. They didn’t explain that to us last quarter. 

Weiss: Since this is a multicultural event, isn’t there a Multicultural Center on campus?

	Thibdeau: Yes, there is. 

Stankiewicz: Let’s see if they have asked for money from that. They haven’t, which is a good point. 

Weiss: Do we have a certain amount allocated for certain orgs?

Stankiewicz: Yeah, F&B uses these funds, we don’t use other funds. For this organization we are looking at the SEAL winter quarter fund right now. 

Thibdeau: In terms of funding groups, we encourage them to seek other sources of funding so they’re not getting all of their funding from us. A lot of the time they are doing that. It’s really just up to you guys in the end if you think it is fair to fund this group. Do you think they can find other sources of funding? Their event is still a little bit ways away. They can come back again. You don’t always have to fully fund everything, but it’s up to you all in the end. 

Majcher: I don’t have their funding request on FLUXX, did they request from other orgs?

Stankiewicz: Yeah, I can pull it up again. This is what has been approved, partially approved, and pending. For the partially approved I’m not sure how much they were granted. What Senator Weiss was saying was, because we have the Multicultural Center, they can ask for funding from there as well if we don’t want to fully fund them. They can maybe come back again if we don’t fully fund them, and they can come back later of they can’t find other sources of funding because their event is in April. What do you all think would be appropriate to approve? 

Thibdeau: Honestly, I wish I could see a budget further break down, because I am looking at this again, I am comparing their funding request from two years ago to now. Their stage cost and crew, which we already approved for them once, was only $500 two years ago. This year it is $5,746. That’s a significant uptick. I just don’t understand what we are paying for if we are not paying for lighting and sound, which is also a lot more than two years ago. They haven’t provided us with any invoices either so we can’t see exactly people are charging them.

Stankiewicz: They have a budget thing on FLUXX I can show you all. It’s a spreadsheet, but it’s not very helpful. 

Thibdeau: Would you all like to see it? I can share my screen. This is their one in FLUXX and the one from two years ago. 

*Screen shared Exhibit I (funding from 2 years ago)*

*Screen shared Exhibit J (funding spreadsheet from this year)*

Thibdeau: Two years ago, the stage and crew cost was $500. Lighting was $1,000, this year it is $3,500. 

Stankiewicz: Maybe what we could do because already funding them for the lighting and all that last quarter, we can fund them for the judging costs now and if they want to come back because they can’t find anyone to cover the stage costs they can do that. I don’t know how everyone else feels about that. That means we would fund them around $1,600.

Thibdeau: I’m not trying to discourage you all for funding them, you should totally do what you feel is fair. I just wish we had a better understanding of what we were looking at.

Weiss: One question that I have is because this would almost be $8,400 of funds, what percentage of the student body is involved in this. I don’t know if it’s a large or small group on campus. It’s a lot of money. I just don’t know how the student fund is benefiting the students. 

Stankiewicz: When student groups ask for funding, we make sure that the event is open to all students who would like to come If it’s not then we can’t fund it. They said they didn’t rent out Campbell Hall as opposed to Arlington theater downtown because they thought the hall would be too small. 

Majcher: They’re event is in April, right?

	Stankiewicz: yes, April 9th. 

Majcher: Maybe if we do your idea and approve the judging and table the rest they can come back at a later time to explain 

Stankiewicz: Yeah, I think if we fund them for the line items we haven’t funded them for before, and they can’t get funding from the Multicultural Center or other sources, they can come back for those line items. 

Thibdeau: Would it be helpful to you all to have them provide additional documentation? Like invoices or quotes from people and the services?

Stankiewicz: And maybe a statement showing that they had to pay the 40% that we funded them for last quarter, that would be helpful. 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Weiss

Motion Language: motion to fund UCSB Dhadkan $1,600 for $600 for the judging service fee and $1,000 for judging hospitality line items out of SEAL spring quarter fund

ACTION: passed at 6:31 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



12. CODE - Requesting $4,875 from senate unallocated for their honoraria budget

Finch: The reason I think for asking for honoraria to increase is because when the budget was passed, the bill to increase honoraria was passed after that. Most of the BCU’s didn’t have the right amount in their honoraria. I just confirmed with Cindy, it can come out of senate unallocated. Usually, they could reallocate within their budget, but they can also take from senate unallocated. This would be an exception this year because the amount of honoraria went up after the budget was passed. 

Stankiewicz: That’s what I thought too, but we don’t usually fund honoraria, so that’s good to know. 

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Puentes

Motion Language: motion to approve CODE’s funding request for $4,875 from senate unallocated for their honoraria budget

ACTION: passed at 6:34 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



13. Beyond Academia at UCSB - requesting $9865.00 out of SEAL Spring Quarter Fund

a. Online platform - $1,500

b. Rent for UCEN - $500

c. Saturday night dinner - $1,500

d. Keynote - $1,500

e. Hotel (two nights per person) - $2500

f. Gas offset - $1,500

g. Flyer printing - $200

h. Banners for in person - $100

i. Marketing (misc.) - $500

j. OSL account maintenance fees - $65

MOTION: To fund the Dinner ($1,500), Keynote Speaker ($1,500), Online platform ($1,500), and rent for UCEN ($500) with the stipulation to seek alternate sources of funding out of SEAL Spring Quarter Fund

1st/2nd: Majcher/Xia

Action: PASSED 2/3rd vote

Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Rutenburg/Weiss

Motion Language: motion to amend last week’s motion to fund Beyond Academia’s funding request for dinner for $1,500, keynote speaker for $1,500, online platform for $1,500, and rent for the UCEN for $500 with the stipulation to seek alternate sources of funding out of SEAL spring quarter fund with an additional stipulation that they open their event to undergraduate students

ACTION: passed at 6:37 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate





*Moved here at 5:22PM*

G.	Discussion Items

a. Re-evaluate last weeks motion - amend with stipulation



1. Beyond Academia at UCSB - requesting $9865.00 out of SEAL Spring Quarter Fund

k. Online platform - $1,500

l. Rent for UCEN - $500

m. Saturday night dinner - $1,500

n. Keynote - $1,500

o. Hotel (two nights per person) - $2500

p. Gas offset - $1,500

q. Flyer printing - $200

r. Banners for in person - $100

s. Marketing (misc) - $500

t. OSL account maintenance fees - $65

MOTION: To fund the Dinner ($1,500), Keynote Speaker ($1,500), Online platform ($1,500), and rent for UCEN ($500) with the stipulation to seek alternate sources of funding out of SEAL Spring Quarter Fund

1st/2nd: Majcher/Xia

Action: PASSED 2/3rd vote

Stankiewicz: I put this under discussion items because I recommend, we reevaluate this motion and amend it with another stipulation to say that they open up their event to undergraduate students because this event is currently not open anu undergraduate students and it is coming out of undergraduate student funding. Last year when it was funded, which is why we funded them again this year, F&B wasn’t aware the event was not open to undergraduate students because it wasn’t asked. Now that we know, I believe that it would be best to add another stipulation that they again must include this be open to all undergraduate students.  



Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Majcher/Engler

Motion Language: motion to move Beyond Academia’s request into new business

ACTION: passed at 5:24 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate





Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Xia

Motion Language: motion to resume orders of the day

ACTION: passed at 5:26 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate


ADJOURNMENT



Recommendation:

MOTION/SECOND: Bongard/Puentes

Motion Language: motion to adjourn today’s meeting at 6:38 PM

ACTION: passed at 6:38 PM

Advisor/Staff Instruction/Request:

Responsible for Follow-through:

Additional approval required: YES Senate



MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:38 PM
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Exhibit I

(the one from last year)
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From Our Community to Yours

With your support, we can provide an inclusive space for students to overcome
barriers and help aspiring young professionals gain valuable experience in
computer science.

Regardless of socioeconomic background, we do not charge attendance fees to
encourage all students to participate.

We hope that our hackathon can encourage the growth of more minority, female,
and first-generation engineers and entrepreneurs or those who want to learn more
about the industry.
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SB Hacks Funding Request

Previously approved funding: $15,990 to cover
venue/facilities costs

New Categories:

e Digital Venue Fees (Hopin, Discord): $449.00
e T-Shirt, Stickers, misc. giveaways: $3,025.00

We currently display the AS logo prominently on
our t-shirts, website, devpost, advertisements, and
any other form of media and signage.
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HACKS

Thank You!

&
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Lunch 35 people $500 x 3 = $1500
Tshirts (guests and students) 50 x $15 = $750
Breakfast, coffee, snacks, supplies = $450
Parking 16 guests x $8 = $128

‘Speaker stipend 16 x $300 = $3200

Total = $6028
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Book: Beyond Survival: 
Strategies and Stories 
from the Transformative 
Justice Movement




Link: https:
//www.akpress.
org/beyond-
survival.html




Per item x20 x25
Estimated 
shipping (max)




Estimated tax 
(max) Total Split cost




Physical copy 18 360 450 28.5 32.63 511.13 170.3766667
E-book 9 180 225 0 16.31 241.31 80.43666667
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REEL
LOUD

FILM & ARTS FESTIVAL

ASFB Funding Request 2022
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What is Reel Loud?

- Reel Loud prides itself as a celebration of the arts and a platform for young artists

- A chance for students and alumni of any and all art mediums to exhibit their work in a public
space to be viewed by friends, family, and industry professionals

- Reel Loud has been a tradition within the FAMST department for over 30 years

-
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Reel Loud: Weird and Wonderful UCSB PRESENTS

This year’s theme is “Weird and Wonderful”

- This idea was inspired by art pieces we had come
across by Dr. Seuss

- We feel the theme encompasses much of what art
can be, and the ambiguity of the name has sparked
a lot of creativity on our end, so we hope it will also
inspire those who want to submit
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Our plans for this year

- Inlight of COVID-19, this will be the first campus-based Reel Loud Festival since 2019
- So far we have been given the go ahead from UCSB to plan for Campbell Hall as our location
- Despite the omicron outbreak, we have still been able to move along in terms of preparation
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COVID-19 Safety

- AsUCSB prepares for a return to campus, we are currently waiting on updates from Campbell
Hall administrators in terms of what Covid safety guidelines may look like in the spring

- For now, we plan on requiring masks at the event, as well as encouraging interested parties in
staying up to date on Covid vaccinations

- Inthe event that new Covid variants make it unsafe to attend an indoor festival, we have plans
to rework the festival at the Westwind Drive-in in Goleta (This was last year’s location!)
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Publicizing

Reel Loud is typically publicized largely through Facebook and Intagram

Posters are redesigned yearly for campus adertising and theme-inspired video/picture
content is created specifically for social media
Weekly tabling during spring quarter
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Budget Breakdown
Total Requested: $27,000

Main components:

- Operational costs: $20,245

- Performance costs: Expected range is between $6,000-$8,000

- Grants: $3,000

- This year we will be reaching out to CAB, HFA, After Dark, and IV Arts for grants
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Grants:

- Any student who wants to submit to REEL LOUD will be able to access grants (as long as money
lasts) in order to submit a film/art piece.

- In order for the festival truly equitable to marginalized students, we want to make resources as
accessible as we can.
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Grant Budget:

- Based on past submission numbers, the max amount we would need if everyone applies to get
reimbursed/funded:

400x (16 +15 +16) = $18,800

- If our grant requests prove successful this quarter, then we may find other orgs to reach out to
during the spring
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Source

RHA

SCORE

CAB

After Dark

CAB

Covo

Queer Commission
TSA

COoswB

Amount

$1,500.00
$6,000.00
$4,950.00
$1,000.00
$3,246.00
$3,550.00
$1,000.00
$450.00

$1,162.00

Org Contact Name and Email

ucsbfinancevp@gmail.com
score.chairs@as.ucsb.edu
cabtreasurer@as.ucsb.edu
Kathleen Vu, kvu@ucsb.edu
cabtreasurer@as.ucsb.edu
covo@as.ucsb.edu
tgcomm@as.ucsb.edu
as-tsacochair@ucsb.edu

as.cowsb@gmail.com

Status

Approved
Partially Funded
Approved
Approved
Approved
Approved
Partially Funded
Pending
Pending
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SB Hacks Funding
Request

Winter 2022
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What is SB Hacks

SB Hacks is a 36-hour hackathon hosted
annually by students at the University of
California, Santa Barbara.

Open to all students (required to apply). We try
to attract students of diverse backgrounds and
interests.

Due to COVID concerns, SB Hacks VIl is now
hosted virtually from Feb 4-6, 2022

Find out more at our website (sbhacks.com)
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